
 

 

 

 
 

To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
22 June 2022 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712568 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY, 
28 JUNE 2022 in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN AND BY VIDEO 
CONFERENCE. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting.   
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 7 June 2022 (copy 
enclosed).   
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

5 UK GOVERNMENT LEVELLING UP FUND BID APPROVAL - CLWYD 
WEST CONSTITUENCY  (Pages 13 - 24) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Jason McLellan, Leader and Lead Member 
for Economic Growth and Tackling Deprivation (copy enclosed) 
recommending that Cabinet reiterate its support for the proposed projects and 
delegate authority to named officers in consultation with the Leader to agree 
a standalone bid for the constituency of Clwyd West. 
 

6 STRATEGIC EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IN DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL  (Pages 25 - 36) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julie Matthews, Lead Member for 
Corporate Strategy, Policy and Equalities (copy enclosed) detailing the 
internal arrangements for supporting the equality and diversity agenda and 
seeking Cabinet approval to form a Member-led Equality and Diversity Group. 
 

7 FUTURE OF THE NORTH WALES CONSTRUCTION PARTNERSHIP - 
MAIN CONTRACTOR FRAMEWORK  (Pages 37 - 92) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julie Matthews, Lead Member for 
Corporate Strategy, Policy and Equality (copy enclosed) seeking Cabinet 
approval to extend the current North Wales Construction Partnership 
Framework for one year. 
 

8 FINANCE REPORT  (Pages 93 - 146) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Gwyneth Ellis, Lead Member for Finance, 
Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) detailing the latest 
financial position and progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 147 - 150) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents.   
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 
Councillor Gill German 
Councillor Elen Heaton 
Councillor Julie Matthews 
Councillor Jason McLellan 
 

Councillor Barry Mellor 
Councillor Win Mullen-James 
Councillor Rhys Thomas 
Councillor Emrys Wynne 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Ruthin and 
by video conference on Tuesday, 7 June 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Jason McLellan, Leader and Lead Member for Economic Growth and 
Tackling Deprivation; Gill German, Deputy Leader and Lead Member for Education, 
Children and Families; Gwyneth Ellis, Lead Member for Finance, Performance and 
Strategic Assets; Elen Heaton, Lead Member for Health and Social Care; Julie Matthews, 
Lead Member for Corporate Strategy, Policy and Equalities; Barry Mellor, Lead Member 
for the Environment and Transport; Win Mullen-James, Lead Member for Local 
Development and Planning, Rhys Thomas, Lead Member for Housing and Communities, 
and Emrys Wynne, Lead Member for Welsh Language, Culture and Heritage 
  
Observers:  Councillors Joan Butterfield, Ellie Chard, Karen Edwards, Bobby Feeley, 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Hugh Irving, Merfyn Parry and Gareth Sandilands 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (GB); Corporate Director: Communities (NS); Heads of Service: Legal, 
HR and Democratic Services (GW), Finance and Property (SG), Planning, Public 
Protection and Countryside Services (EJ); Joint Acting Head of Business Improvement 
and Modernisation (NK); Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader (IM); Public 
Protection, Regeneration and Economic Development Manager (GR); Business Co-
ordinator: Leader’s Office (SE) and Committee Administrators (KEJ & RTJ [Webcaster]) 

 
WELCOME 
 
The Leader welcomed everyone to the first Cabinet meeting of the new Council term. 
 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No declarations of interest had been raised. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No urgent matters had been raised. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 12 April 2022 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2022 be received and 
confirmed as a correct record. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
5 COUNCIL PERFORMANCE SELF-ASSESSMENT 2021 TO 2022  

 
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis presented the report and the Council’s Performance Self-
Assessment 2021 to 2022 for Cabinet’s consideration ahead of its submission to 
Council for approval in July 2022.  She proposed an amendment to the report 
recommendation, that Cabinet confirm the report as an accurate reflection of the 
Council’s Performance during 2021/22 and recommend its approval by Council. 
 
The Performance Self-Assessment provided a year end analysis of progress and 
challenges against key performance objectives (i.e. Corporate Plan Priorities) and 
in the seven areas of governance together with a narrative on council activity in 
support of Equality and Diversity.  It was the first statutorily required document 
written in response to the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 and 
met the Council’s requirements under a number of pieces of legislation. 
 
The Joint Acting Head of Business Improvement and Modernisation and the 
Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader guided members through the 
detail of the report which consisted of three appendices.  It presented an Executive 
Summary (Appendix I) highlighting performance against objectives and the seven 
governance areas and looking ahead to future challenges and areas for 
improvement; the regular quarterly Performance Update Report (Appendix II) 
covering January – March 2022, which combined with the Executive Summary and 
three preceding Update Reports made up the Self-Assessment for 2021 to 2022; 
and a Performance Summary of the Corporate Plan 2017 – 2022 (Appendix III).  
Regular reporting was also highlighted as an essential monitoring requirement of 
the performance management framework.  Officers highlighted a number of key 
messages arising from the Executive Summary with regard to Equality and 
Diversity; provided an overview of each of the performance objectives, and also 
reported against each of the governance areas. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the comprehensive report and evaluation of the Council’s 
performance in delivering against its corporate priorities.  Councillor Gill German 
recorded her appreciation of the Executive Summary which she found particularly 
useful in highlighting the performance areas and informing the new Corporate Plan 
going forward.  Councillor Julie Matthews echoed those sentiments and had been 
pleased to note the references to Equality and the Interim Strategic Equality Plan. 
 
Main areas of debate focused on the following – 
 

 Councillor Emrys Wynne was keen to see future progress reporting on active 
travel provision in the county and officers explained that the report was aligned 
to the Corporate Plan and referenced its contents – the new Corporate Plan was 
currently in development for submission to Council for ratification in October 

 Awel y Dyffryn Extra Care Housing (Denbigh) had been highly praised but work 
to progress the Ruthin Extra Care Housing Scheme had faced significant delays 
– it was expected that work would commence on site late June/early July and 
members would continue to be updated as the development progressed 

 in response to a question from Councillor Bobby Feeley, the Leader highlighted 
the importance of Climate Change as an issue which sat well within Councillor 

Page 6



Barry Mellor’s portfolio together with transport and waste management to drive 
that agenda forward, and it would be a huge part of Cabinet’s work going 
forward including meeting the Council’s net carbon zero target 

 Councillor Joan Butterfield asked that details of the carbon footprint of new 
developments/infrastructure projects be sought from developers and included in 
future committee reports and the Leader confirmed that he would take up the 
issue directly with Councillor Barry Mellor and relevant officers.  Councillor Win 
Mullen-James added that Rhyl Town Council required a statement on the impact 
of the development on climate change for each planning application and she 
would look to take that approach forward in Denbighshire. 

 
Councillor Ellis restated her proposed amendment to the report recommendations, 
seconded by Councillor Gill German, and upon being put to the vote it was – 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet confirms that the Performance Self-Assessment Report is 
an accurate reflection of the Council’s Performance during 2021/22 and 
recommends its approval by Council. 
 

6 ADOPTION OF THE NORTH WALES REGIONAL ECONOMIC FRAMEWORK  
 
Councillor Jason McLellan presented the report and the North Wales Regional 
Economic Framework (NWREF) for adoption. 
 
The NWREF promoted collaborative economic development across the region 
through an agreed and shared set of priorities for delivery amongst regional 
partners.  The Memorandum of Understanding (Working Together to deliver a 
stronger North Wales Economy) set out how the Welsh Government, the North 
Wales Economic Ambition Board and other partners would work in partnership and 
deliver against a single common framework. 
 
The Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services provided some 
background regarding the collaborative working and targeted engagement with a 
range of key stakeholders in designing the approach to economic development and 
shared priorities for the region.  The NWREF built on much of the existing good 
work and would sit above many of the plans and strategies already in place or to be 
developed over the coming months and years.  It set out a different way of looking 
at economic growth with a holistic approach based on the principles of a Wellbeing 
Economy with three core themes (1) Social and Community Wellbeing, (2) Low 
Carbons and Emissions Economy, and (3) the Experience Economy, with a number 
of priorities structured around those themes.  The North Wales Economic Ambition 
Board (NWEAB) had co-produced the document and recommended it be endorsed 
by each of the six North Wales local authorities.  The high level framework would be 
subject to further work and development following its adoption. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the NWREF and collaborative working between the Welsh 
Government and partners across the region and benefits it would bring to the area.  
Cabinet discussed the framework with officers, highlighting a number of important 
areas in the document and issues to be taken forward for further development – 
 

Page 7



 student enrolment on higher education courses in North Wales was 13% 
(against a population of 22%) and there was a need to increase that percentage 
to better reflect the regional population and retain young adults in the area 

 current partners included higher education colleges and the framework included 
much reference to developing opportunities for young people in terms of better 
jobs in sectors important to the region 

 whilst 37% of renewable energy was produced in North Wales, only 8% was 
locally owned, and greater detail was needed as to how that percentage could 
be increased to ensure the benefits of such schemes were retained in the region 

 ensuring the right skills set in the region was emphasised and it was suggested 
that further involvement of schools would prove beneficial in that regard, 
particularly given the opportunities presented with the new curriculum to tailor 
the offer locally to what was applicable to young people in the area, ahead of 
and leading up to the college environment.  It was noted that the Regional Skills 
Partnership was closely aligned to the NWEAB and work could be undertaken to 
further link those elements with the framework 

 there were many different strategies and plans already in place and the NWREF 
would sit above those to provide a strategic context and identify any gaps or 
weaknesses there may be in the region with a view to addressing them 

 economic development in rural areas was a key issue for counties in the region 
and it was important the rural economy developed with appropriate transport 
links to less accessible areas and suitable business/housing.  The framework 
provided a holistic perspective of the economy and included transport, digital 
infrastructure and active travel which would form part of future discussions 

 the development of indigenous companies in Denbighshire should be supported 
to fill any identified gaps in the supply chain with a view to building up the 
Community and Wellbeing economy in the county.  It was confirmed that 
regional and local baseline data was available to be used to identify some of 
those gaps which would form part of the work for the region going forward 

 the document included reference to working in partnership to improve transport 
links and provide an alternative to the reliance on cars and shift to lower carbon 
transport modes.  Ensuring low carbon transport was also a focus for the 
NWEAB and the improvement of rail links and electrification had been 
recognised as a key issue.  Reference was also made to the forthcoming Welsh 
Government paper on public transport which would feed into the framework. 

 
In response to questions from Councillor Gareth Sandilands, an update was 
provided on the recruitment process of the new Corporate Director – Environment 
and Economy and it was hoped an appointment could be made by Council on 5 
July.  In terms of ensuring the framework worked for Denbighshire, it was important 
for Denbighshire to play its part in the partnership and to maximise opportunities 
and benefits for the county.  The Denbighshire Economic Community Ambition 
Strategy was in place until 2023 and it would be appropriate to work with members 
to review that strategy and move forward under the new Corporate Plan.  The 
Council had a proactive local team which provided much support for businesses in 
the county which would co-ordinate and align with regional discussions. 
 
The Leader brought the debate to a close and thanked members for their 
contributions and important points raised which would be taken forward by officers 
for future development and addressed as part of the framework going forward. 

Page 8



 
RESOLVED that the Regional Economic Framework for North Wales is endorsed 
and adopted by the Council. 
 
At this point (11.10 am) the meeting adjourned for a refreshment break. 
 

7 FINANCE REPORT (2021/22 FINANCIAL OUTTURN)  
 
Councillor Gwyneth Ellis presented the report on the final revenue outturn position 
for 2020/21 and proposed treatment of reserves and balances. 
 
The Head of Finance and Property guided members through the detail of the report 
and appendices as outlined in brief below – 
 

 the final outturn position on service and corporate budgets (including schools 
underspend of £6.778m) was an underspend of £9.177m 

 in March the Welsh Government announced a one-off increase in the Revenue 
Support Grant for 2021/22 of £60m (DCC share £1.994m) with request that 
£10m (DCC share £0.332m) be used to fund improvements to travel 
arrangements for care workers including electric vehicles; the residual £1.662m 
would be placed in the budget mitigation reserve to help the Council deal with 
inflationary pressures 

 detailed the 2021/22 budget service savings and efficiencies required (£2.666m) 

 highlighted the impact of coronavirus and the significant grant funding received 
from the Welsh Government – £10.9m had been received by the end of the 
financial year with the assumption that the outstanding final grant claims (£4.1m) 
would be paid in full 

 an overall school balance of £12.448m would be carried forward (an increase of 
£6.778m on deficit balances brought forward into 2021/22 of £5.670m) with 
much of that funding to be used in 2022/23 to recover from the impact of Covid 

 key elements of the underspend in corporate budgets (£1.964m) largely related 
to centrally held contingency budgets for service overspends, pay settlements, 
energy costs and Business Rates 

 given the overall position within services and the availability of corporate funds, 
it was proposed that services carry forward the net under spends listed as 
committed services balances to help deliver the 2022/23 budget strategy and 
meet existing commitments 

 it was expected unused base budget contingencies in 2021/22 would be 
required to fund the impact of inflationary cost increases in 2022/23 

 provided full details of the transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves. 
 
The following matters were raised during the ensuing debate – 
 

 Councillor Gill German welcomed the position on school budgets and timely 
support from Welsh Government with funding available to address the impact of 
the pandemic and challenges ahead and paid tribute to the way in which 
schools had responded during the pandemic.  She also recognised that families 
were struggling with the cost of living rises and funding support for early years 
and family link workers would be crucial in mitigating the impact on children 

Page 9



 there was some discussion on the financial management of schools and it was 
anticipated that school budgets would reduce significantly over the next three 
years as the funding was spent to ensure schools and pupils recovered from the 
pandemic, and the close working between schools, education and finance 
teams was highlighted to ensure that schools had appropriate financial plans in 
place and sustainable school budgets going forward.  Specific support had been 
provided previously for schools in financial difficulty and that support would 
continue for schools facing financial pressures to ensure a robust recovery plan 

 with regard to the potential use of reserves and balances for capital expenditure 
it was explained that they were reviewed annually as part of the budget process.  
The budget mitigation reserve was used to support budget setting and could be 
used for capital purposes if decided by Council.  The capital programme for the 
next financial year had benefitted from additional £1.6m Welsh Government 
funding and the finance report to be submitted to the next Cabinet meeting 
would include a summary of the capital programme for the new financial year 
and recommendation that £1.6m be put into the contingency for the capital 
programme to help fund pressures arising from the tendering process due to the 
significant increases in the costs of goods and materials 

 as part of the budget process in 2022/23 some revenue funding had been 
earmarked to fund borrowing and enable delivery of some of the projects 
identified as part of the horizon scanning exercise with further work to be carried 
out in order to provide a process of reviewing and approving those projects 

 Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts referred to post-Covid recovery and sought 
clarity on the future of Denbighshire’s buildings and occupancy together with the 
effect on finances and highlighted the impact of empty buildings on the local 
economy.  During the ensuing debate officers reported upon the New Ways of 
Working Project and current phase of allowing staff to decide their own working 
patterns subject to the business needs of the Council being met.  The situation 
would be monitored over the next 6/8 months with a view to determining the 
best way forward in terms of developing a strategy for asset management which 
might include alternative uses for buildings or collaborative working and sharing 
of office space.  A debate followed on post-Covid recovery and the workplace 
and both the potential advantages and disadvantages of staff returning to office 
buildings versus home working and the impact on wellbeing, local economies 
and the carbon footprint of those future working patterns.  Assurances were 
given that the energy efficiency of council buildings was taken into account as 
part of that process.  It was noted that the approach to determining future ways 
of working would be based on the needs of staff, taking into account work/life 
balance and service delivery, and any potential savings arising from future ways 
of working would be secondary.  It was also noted that Denbighshire’s approach 
was similar to other local authorities and work was ongoing to further discuss 
those approaches and share best practice, and more information in that regard 
could be shared with members as the situation developed.  

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
 
(a) notes the final revenue outturn position for 2021/22; 
 
(b) approves the proposed treatment of reserves and balances as described in 

the report and detailed in Appendices 1, 2 and 3, and 

Page 10



 
(c) notes the details of transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves as set out in 

Appendix 4. 
 

8 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Cabinet forward work programme was presented for consideration and 
members noted the following amendments – 
 

 the Lead Member for the Future of the North Wales Construction Partnership 
item scheduled for June was Councillor Julie Matthews 

 Levelling Up Fund: Clwyd West Constituency – additional item for June 
 
The Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services agreed to ascertain when a report 
on the Welsh Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme 
(Band B) would be brought before Cabinet. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet’s forward work programme be noted. 
 
The meeting concluded at 12.20 pm. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Cabinet 

Date of meeting 28th June 2022 

Lead Member  Cllr Jason McLellan, Lead Member for Economic Growth and 

Tackling Deprivation  

Report author Emlyn Jones, Head of Planning, Public Protection & 

Countryside Service 

Title UK Government Levelling Up Fund bid approval - Clwyd West 

Constituency 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. This report relates to Round 2 of applications to the United Kingdom (UK) 

Government Levelling Up Fund (LUF) relating to the Clwyd West Constituency 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. A previous report (see Appendix 1) was brought to Cabinet on the 21st November 

2021 to seek a decision to provide delegated authority to the Chief Executive 

Officer and Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services in 

consultation with the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and the Leader, to 

agree to the submission of the Levelling Up bid to UK Government, in partnership 

with Conwy County Borough Council (CCBC), for the constituency of Clwyd 

West. This was agreed by Cabinet.   

2.2. However, due to a change in circumstances and following advice from the 

Monitoring Officer, Cabinet support is now required for DCC to pursue their own 

bid rather than a joint bid with CCBC. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. That Cabinet reiterates its support for the proposed projects that were previously 

supported by Cabinet and the broad indicative value of each project. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
 

3.2. That Cabinet provides delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer and 

Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services in consultation 

with the Section 151 Officer, Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services and 

the Leader, to refine the projects and project costs as required and to agree for a 

standalone bid from Denbighshire County Council to be submitted for Round 2 of 

UK Government’s Levelling Up Fund for the constituency of Clwyd West.  

4. Report details 

4.1. Cabinet have previously supported the submission of the Levelling Up bid to UK 

Government, in partnership with CCBC, for the constituency of Clwyd West.  The 

bid and the projects within it had been identified and developed following close 

engagement with local Members and Ruthin Town Council. 

4.2. That report was taken to Cabinet on 21st November 2021 and is attached as 

Appendix 1 for background information. 

4.3. The UK Government LUF guidance stated at the time that, where a constituency 

crosses multiple LAs, that those LAs should work together to develop a joint bid 

but one LA should take responsibility as the lead bidder. In relation to Clwyd 

West, a joint bid with CCBC was agreed, with CCBC acting as the lead 

bidder/authority.  

4.4. Cabinet approved the bid submission on this basis on 21st November 2021. 

4.5. The proposed projects included in that report remain unchanged and they are: 

 St Peter’s Square Ruthin – Public Realm 

 St Peter’s Square clock tower - restoration 

 Ruthin Gaol/46 Clwyd Street – new entrance/exhibition space & munitions 

shed restoration  

 Nant Clwyd y Dre – West Wing & Gazebo restoration  

 Cae Ddol – green space improvements   

 Moel Fammau catering facilities – new catering & toilet facilities  

 Moel Fammau cycling/walking paths – formalise a new cycling/path loop  

 Loggerheads building – enhanced facilities throughout the building & 

external flood prevention works  

 Bryneglwys School – community hub renovation 

 Gwyddelwern - New community centre 

Page 14



 
 

4.6. Since that date DCC have been working in partnership with CCBC to develop a 

joint bid, including jointly appointing a consultant to support with the bid 

application. 

4.7. UK Government announced the launch of the Round 2 of LUF on the 23rd March 

2022. Revised and updated LUF guidance was provided to LAs. 

4.8. UK Government confirmed the following: 

6th July 2022 - closing date for bid applications in Round 2 of LUF. 

31st March 2025 – LUF funding should be committed and spent. 

4.9. One subtle, yet fundamental, change to the LUF criteria for Round 2 submissions 

was in relation to where a constituency crosses multiple LA’s .i.e Clwyd West. 

Whereas the previous criteria only made provision for one single joint bid in 

these circumstances, the revised guidance for Round 2 made provision for a bid 

from each LA who crossed a constituency boundary. For Clwyd West this 

allowed for a single bid from both DCC and CCBC.  

4.10. CCBC told DCC at the end of April that they were considering withdrawing from 

the joint bid in order to pursue their own bid. 

4.11. A number of meetings have since taken place between senior officers and David 

Jones MP to discuss CCBC’s proposed change. Latterly the CEO and Leader of 

both Councils have also met with David Joes MP to discuss matters.  

4.12. It is not entirely clear why CCBC wish to pursue their own bid, however, it is clear 

that this is the way they wish to progress. Whilst DCC accept that CCBC are able 

to pursue their own bid DCC’s preference was to continue with a joint bid. 

4.13. Officers and the consultants remain as confident as ever that the DCC element 

and projects within the Clwyd West LUF bid remain strong and cohesive in the 

event of a DCC standalone bid. 

4.14. An important element of the bid submission is that of MP support and 

‘prioritisation’. David Jones MP will provide a letter of support for both bids. 

However, an MP can only provide “prioritisation/primary support” to a single bid. 

This forms part of the scoring criteria.  

Page 15



 
 

4.15. David Jones MP is now considering his position and has asked for a report from 

both DCC and CCBC setting out why they think he should prioritise their 

submission. We have asked David Jones MP if he could let us know his decision 

as soon as possible. 

4.16. Ruthin Local Members have been updated and officers attended Ruthin Member 

Area Group on the 27th of June to provide further details. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. The projects in the bid seek to have a visible impact in local areas, particularly 

those areas most in need. Regeneration is at the forefront of the bid and where 

possible, the inclusion of active travel, better town centre connectivity and 

enhancing green space accessible by all is incorporated into the bid. The bid 

therefore will contribute towards the corporate policies as well as providing 

benefits to the local community.  

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. Capacity funding has been provided to the LA to develop its bids. It is intended that 

the project activities will enable the LA to accelerate some of its pipeline plans and 

as such, may require additional resources earlier than originally anticipated. A 

match fund of 10% is expected to accompany the bid.   

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. A wellbeing impact assessment has been undertaken. The main conclusions are 

that there are many positive impacts expected, but given the early stages of 

developed, there is an opportunity for these to be extended and for some of 

the outlined negative impacts to be reduced via rigorous planning and 

proposed resolutions by the various projects leads and overall monitoring. It 

is important to note, community engagement and consultation will continue 

and be further developed as the projects evolve. 

Page 16



 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. Consultations have taken place with relevant Member Area Groups, Town 

Councils, individual Members and meetings have been held with David Jones 

MP. Leaders, CEO’s and Senior Managers from both DCC and CBCC.  

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1 The Levelling Up Fund is an important source of funding to help regenerate the area. 

Extensive consultation has been carried out by the team for all three bids to arrive at 

the current list for Clwyd West. I can confirm that the match funding requirement will 

be made available over the course of the LUF programme, although it is hoped some 

of this can be sourced from other external sources.  

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. A robust decision making process will be put in place to approve the bid 

including agreement from key senior officers and the Leader. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. Section 111, Local Government Act 1972. Section 2, Local Government Act 

2000. The power to undertake activity for the promotion of the social, economic 

or environmental well-being of the area.  

  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Cabinet 

Date of meeting 23  November, 2021 

Lead Member  Cllr Hugh Evans, Lead Member Economy & Corporate 

Governance  

Report author Emlyn Jones, Head of Planning, Public Protection & 

Countryside Service 

Title UK Government Levelling Up Fund bid approval - Clwyd West 

Constituency 

1. What is the report about?

1.1. This report relates to the United Kingdom (UK) Government Levelling Up Fund

(LUF). The fund is intended to support investment in places where it can make 

the biggest difference to everyday life, including ex-industrial areas, deprived 

towns and coastal communities. 

2. What is the reason for making this report?

2.1. A decision is required to provide delegated authority to the Chief Executive

Officer and Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services in 

consultation with the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and the Leader, to 

agree to the submission of the Levelling Up bid to UK Government, in 

partnership with Conwy County Borough Council, for the constituency of Clwyd 

West..   

3. What are the Recommendations?

3.1. That Cabinet support the theme of the bid, the proposed projects to be included

in the bid and the broad indicative value of each project. 

3.2. That Cabinet provides delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer and 

Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services in consultation 

Page 23

Appendix 1

Page 19



 
 

with the Section 151 Officer, Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services and 

the Leader, to refine the projects and project costs as required and to agree for 

a bid to be submitted to UK Government from Denbighshire County Council in 

partnership with Conwy CBC for the constituency of Clwyd West.  

4. Report details 

4.1. The UK Government Levelling Up Fund will be delivered through local 

authorities, which have been placed into category 1, 2, or 3 where category 1 

represents the highest levels of identified need. Denbighshire County Council is 

in category 1. 

4.2. The number of bids that a local authority (LA) can make will relate to the 

number of MPs in their area. LAs can submit one bid for every MP whose 

constituency lies wholly within their boundary. Where a constituency crosses 

multiple LAs, those LAs will work together but one LA should take responsibility 

as the lead bidder. In relation to Clwyd West, DCC are developing a joint bid 

with Conwy CBC, who are acting as the lead bidder/authority.  

4.3. Each constituency area bid can be up to a maximum of £20 million of capital 

funding. Bids can be for a single project or a package of up to three projects, so 

long as the components are aligned with each other and represent a coherent 

set of interventions. 

4.4. The Denbighshire County Council element of the Clwyd West bid (a joint bid 

with CCBC) with be approximately £10M. Detailed business cases have not yet 

been fully developed. The costs in appendix 1 are broad figures at this 

stage and subject to refinement.  

4.5. MPs should be consulted and should support the bids. Involvement from other 

local stakeholders is also encouraged. Each LA has received £125k capacity 

funding to help develop their bids. 

4.6. Each constituency can only make one bid to the Fund, which must be delivered 

by March 2024. Each bid must conform to one or more of the three themes (i) 

transport investments, (ii) regeneration and town centre investment and (iii) 

cultural investment. Round 1 closed on 18 June 2021. A firm date for the 

closure round 2 has still not yet been received from UK Government although 

Page 24Page 20



 
 

indications, when LUF was launched, were that round 2 would close around 

December 2021.  

4.7. Denbighshire County Council has 3 MP constituency areas:  

Vale of Clwyd (James Davies MP);  

Clwyd West (David Jones MP);  

Clwyd South (Simon Baynes MP).  

The bid for Clwyd South was submitted in round 1 and was successful.  

4.8. This report relates to the round 2 bid for the Clwyd West constituency, which is 

shared with Conwy County Borough Council (CCBC). 

4.9. The Leader and Senior Officers have met on several occasions with David 

Jones MP to discuss priority investments across the Clwyd West constituency.  

4.10. Local Members have also been extensively consulted across all MAGs. Each 

project put forward has been considered against the Levelling Up Fund criteria 

and deliverability deadlines. Members have been consulted individually where 

their project does or does not qualify. Further MAG meetings have taken place 

to inform Members of those projects that will likely form part of the bid. 

Engagement has been undertaken with Ruthin Town Council, as the only Town 

Council within the County of Denbighshire for the Clwyd West constituency. 

4.11. The Clwyd West bid forms three cohesive projects across Denbighshire and 

Conwy Council areas. The two projects relating to Denbighshire target cultural 

and heritage investment. Protecting historical places and enhancing green 

spaces will bring many benefits to local communities including enhancing 

wellbeing while further enticing tourism and strengthening related economic 

activity. Please see Appendix I for a full list of the proposed projects to be 

included in the bid.   

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. The projects in the bid seek to have a visible impact in local areas, particularly 

those areas most in need. Regeneration is at the forefront of the bid and where 

possible, the inclusion of active travel, better town centre connectivity and 

enhancing green space accessible by all is incorporated into the bid. The bid 

Page 25Page 21



 
 

therefore will contribute towards the corporate policies as well as providing 

benefits to the local community.  

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. Capacity funding has been provided to the LA to develop its bids. It is intended that 

the project activities will enable the LA to accelerate some of its pipeline plans and 

as such, may require additional resources earlier than originally anticipated. A 

match fund of 10% is expected to accompany the bid..   

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. A wellbeing impact assessment has been undertaken. The main conclusions 

are that there are many positive impacts expected, but given the early 

stages of developed, there is an opportunity for these to be extended and for 

some of the outlined negative impacts to be reduced via rigorous planning 

and proposed resolutions by the various projects leads and overall 

monitoring.It is important to note, community engagement and consultation 

will continue and be further developed as the projects evolve. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. Consultations have taken place with all the Member Area Groups twice, Town 

Councils, individual Members and meetings have been held with David Jones 

MP. Leaders, CEO’s and Senior Managers from both DCC and CBCC have met 

to discuss and agree a joint working approach Regular meetings have also 

taken place with relevant Officers from DCC and Conwy CBC 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1 The Levelling Up Fund is an important source of funding to help regenerate the area. 

Extensive consultation has been carried out by the team for all three bids to arrive at 

the current list for Clwyd West. I can confirm that the match funding requirement will 

be made available over the course of the LUF programme, although it is hoped some 

of this can be sourced from other external sources. The proposals will have been 

circulated to SIG by the time Cabinet meets and feedback will be provided at that 

stage.  

Page 26Page 22



 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. A robust decision making process will be put in place to approve the bid 

including agreement from key senior officers and the Leader. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. Section 111, Local Government Act 1972. Section 2, Local Government Act 

2000. The power to undertake activity for the promotion of the social, economic 

or environmental well-being of the area.  

Page 27Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 

Report to Cabinet  

Date of meeting 28 June 2022 

Lead Member / Officer Cllr Julie Matthews, Lead Member for Corporate Strategy, 

Policy and Equalities/ Nicola Kneale, Acting Joint Head of BIM 

Report author Carol Evans, Strategic Planning and Performance Officer  

Title Strategic Equality and Diversity in Denbighshire County Council 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. This report is about internal arrangements for supporting the equality and 

diversity agenda. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. In the past 12 months there have been numerous developments on the subject 

of equality and diversity at a national level (Wales Programme for Government, 

Race Equality Action Plan, Local Government and Elections Act) and a local 

level (equality-focused research in DCC’s Local Assessment of Well-being). As 

a consequence the Leader and (informal) Cabinet of the 2017-22 administration 

recommended that a Strategic Equality and Diversity Group is required to 

oversee internal arrangements to support and monitor equality and diversity in 

the current term (2022-27). 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. That Cabinet notes recent developments, and approves the formation of a 

Member-led Equality and Diversity group (to be reviewed after 12 months to 

consider whether the Group needs to cease, alter and/or celebrate 

achievements). 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 
 

4. Report details 

4.1. Under the Equality Act 2010 local authorities are required to publish Strategic 

Equality Plans every four years. We currently have an Interim Strategic Equality 

Plan for 2021, and we are working to incorporate future equality objectives in 

the next iteration of the Corporate Plan. 

4.2. Within the Programme for Government (2021 – 2026), there is a commitment to 

celebrate diversity and move to eliminate inequality in all of its forms. Actions 

which come from all of the work will filter into Denbighshire, but the volume of 

work will be challenging.   

4.3. Other developments at national government level have filtered down into local 

government. These include the recent Race Equality Action Plan: an anti-racist 

Wales (REAP – which should be available in June 2022), The LGBTQ+ Action 

Plan, Relationships and Sexuality Education (RES) Statutory Guidance and 

Code and consultation on Future Funding for Equality and Inclusion Grant 

Programme. 

4.4. Additional commitments may arise for the council from the ‘Locked Out’ Report 

– an independent report commissioned by Welsh Government to a look at 

disabled people’s experiences of the pandemic with a particular focus on public 

services. 

4.5. We have undertaken the local assessment of well-being (for Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015) to inform the development of the local 

well-being plan and our corporate plan. This has highlighted the link between 

those facing equality issues and deprivation. 

4.6. The WLGA has an ambitious Diversity and Democracy Programme to try and 

ensure that council chambers are more representative of the communities that 

they serve. They have been considering ways in which greater diversity can be 

achieved following the local government elections in May 2022.  

4.7. Prior to the 2017 elections Denbighshire County Council had a dedicated 

Equality Officer; in the interests of mainstreaming equalities in the council’s 

business, this post was deleted (legislative lead being the Strategic Planning & 

Performance Team). 

Page 26



 
 

4.8. The Leader of the 2017-22 administration met with all of the female councillors 

of Denbighshire County Council on 9th November 2021 for a discussion about 

their experiences both of the barriers that women may face in standing for 

election and any improvements that can be made in the way the Council works 

to demonstrate an open and inclusive culture, and consider the practical steps 

that may be taken to improve the experience of female councillors. 

4.9. Until 2017, a member / officer Equalities working group existed, chaired by Lead 

Member for Equality, with the final meeting taking place March 2017, when this 

working group ceased.  Terms of Reference for the group existed, and they 

have been updated to reflect a potential strategic equality and diversity group 

going forward (Appendix A). 

4.10. In light of the considerations at 4.2 to 4.9 and recommendation from the 

previous Cabinet, this new Cabinet is asked to agree to establishing a Member-

led equality and diversity group supported by a member of the Strategic 

Planning team.  The broad remit of the group would be:  

- Deal with equality and diversity-related consultations  

- Oversee performance against equality and diversity strategic initiatives 

(reporting to Performance Scrutiny) 

- Oversee performance against equality and diversity democratic initiatives 

(reporting to Democratic Services Scrutiny) 

- Critique key impact assessments to ensure due consideration is given to 

equality and diversity issues 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. Equality objectives form our Corporate Plan (future corporate pledges). 

5.2. Commitment to addressing equality issues and promoting diversity is a 

consideration in all that we do, and this is supported by the equality section of 

our Well-being Impact Assessments that accompany significant decisions. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. There is no additional cost associated with this report. 

Page 27



 
 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. This report is for information and to prompt discussion, and does not require a 

Well-being Impact Assessment. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. This suggestion for a strategic equality and diversity group was first considered 

at Cabinet Briefing in February 2022 with recommendations that the request 

was noted and tabled at a Cabinet meeting in the next administration. 

8.2. Discussion has further taken place with SLT and at Cabinet Briefing on 14 June 

2022. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1. There are no significant financial implications arising from the report. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. There is a risk that the council’s resource for dealing with equality and diversity 

is limited. If this transpires, a case can be made for additional resource in the 

future. 

10.2. There is a risk that this Group is not effective. Good meeting discipline (e.g. 

effective planning and Chairing) can help mitigate against this. Also, a 12-month 

pause and review session is part of the Terms of Reference (consistent with 

good meeting practise). 

10.3. There is a risk that the membership of this group is large and not conducive to 

effective meetings. This will be considered as part of the 12-month review.  

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. Equality Act 2010. 

11.2. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

Page 28



 
 

 

Appendix A 

 Terms of Reference for Strategic Equality and Diversity Group 2022 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



March 2022 

 

Strategic Equality and 
Diversity Group  
Draft Terms of Reference 

 

Contents 

Aim of the Group .................................................................................................................. 2 

Membership Roles and Responsibilities .............................................................................. 3 

The SEDG will consist of .................................................................................................. 3 

Each member of the SEDG will .................................................................................... 3 

Administration ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Page 31



Strategic Equality and Diversity Group Draft Terms of 

Reference 

 
2 

Aim of the Group 

The Strategic Equality and Diversity Group (SEDG) has responsibility for ensuring that the 

Council demonstrates fairness in its delivery of services and its employment practices.  It 

will work to develop a culture in which all individuals are treated with dignity and respect, 

and offensive and discriminatory behaviour and harassment are not tolerated. 

 

The SEDG is not a decision making body, but can refer issues to relevant Committees / 

Groups e.g. Cabinet, Council, CET, Scrutiny, SLT when decisions are required. 

 

Specifically, the SEDG will: 

1. Embed the promotion of equality and welcoming of diversity into Council business. 

2. Monitor the quality of key impact assessments, and how assessments are used in 

decision-making. 

3. Act as a ‘critical friend’ when Well-being Impact Assessments are being developed. 

4. Ensure robust arrangements are in place to enable the Council to meet its general and 

specific duties under the Equality Act 2020 e.g. 

o Provide performance oversight of the Strategic Equality Plan (even where 

integrated into the Corporate Plan).   

o Provide oversight for the Council’s compliance with the Public Sector Equality 

Duty (including published reports). 

5. Keep abreast of latest research and developments in terms of equality via links with 

national bodies and the North Wales Public Sector Equality Network (NWPSEN). 

6. Have oversight of consultations on the equality theme. 

7. Contribute to the overview of performance against equality objectives within Council 

Quarterly Performance Reports. 

8. Monitor customer complaints regarding equality and diversity issues. 

9. Link to the diversity and democracy suite of activities.  

 

Page 32



Strategic Equality and Diversity Group Draft Terms of 

Reference 

 
3 

Membership Roles and Responsibilities 

The SEDG will consist of 

 Lead Member for Equalities (Chair) 

 Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets  

 Diversity Champions from each of the five political groups (Labour, Plaid Cymru, 

Conservatives, Independents and the Green Party) 

 Chair of Scrutiny Chair & Vice Chair Group. 

 A representative from CET to act as Vice-Chair (Head of Legal, HR & Democratic 

Services) 

 A representative from SLT (or substitute where required)  

 Communications Lead Officer 

 HR Lead Officer 

 Democratic Services Lead Officer 

 Acting Joint Head of BIM with lead for Equalities 

 Other people may be invited to attend from time to time, e.g. representatives from 

specific council services.   

Each member of the SEDG will 

 Need to understand, and be fully committed to, the values of equality and diversity.  

 Be expected to act as advocates for equality and diversity in all council-related 

business.   

 Be expected to undertake any relevant equality and diversity training. 

 Be responsible for approaching their nominated substitute(s) if they are unable to 

attend a particular meeting.  Nominated substitutes must also demonstrate the 

same commitment to equality and diversity as described above. 

Page 33



Strategic Equality and Diversity Group Draft Terms of 

Reference 

 
4 

 Be responsible for feeding back to their groups (e.g. political party) and acting only 

on behalf of those parties. 

 

Administration 

 SEDG will meet quarterly, and meetings will be planned in advance for each 

financial year. Meeting dates will be in the Council diary.  

 The Chair is responsible for ensuring a manageable agenda, allowing members 

time to discuss and keep to time. 

 No more than four agenda items for each SEDG meeting. 

 Quorum for the Group will be 5 persons including Chair. 

 A Forward Work Programme will be required. 

 The Chair will be supported by a Strategic Planning & Performance Officer. 

 Minutes will be taken at each meeting by Democratic Services.  All papers will be 

published on Modern.gov for transparency. 

 Meetings are ‘closed’ (invitation only). 

 All reports to be submitted to Democratic Services 5 days prior to each SEDG 

meeting.  Every effort will be made to circulate the agenda, and papers at least 4 

days in advance of meetings and minutes no later than 10 working days afterwards. 

Members should make every effort to read and check the minutes and attend to any 

action required by them prior to the next meeting.   

 Whilst all members will have an interest in the items discussed at meetings there 

may be times when it would not be appropriate for a member to be present whilst a 

specific item is discussed. All members will have a responsibility to declare if they 

have an interest which could give rise to a conflict, whether that is perceived or real.  

 The Group’s effectiveness will be reviewed after its first 12 calendar months of 

meetings have taken place, to consider whether the group is having impact and 

make a decision as to its future with options including: continue as is and celebrate 

success; adapt and improve, or cease. 

 Membership will be reviewed in line with Council terms 

Page 34



Strategic Equality and Diversity Group Draft Terms of 

Reference 

 
5 

 Closure of the Group would be reviewed as each administration term comes to a 

close with this group making recommendations to Cabinet.  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Cabinet  

Date of meeting 28 June 2022 

Lead Member / Officer Julie Matthews / Gary Williams 

Report author Tania Silva 

Title Future of the North Wales Construction Partnership – Main 

Contractor Framework 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. The North Wales Construction Partnership (NWCP) is the only public sector Major 

Construction Framework in the region, it was created and is managed by 

Denbighshire County Council on behalf of the six NW Local Authorities.  The 

Framework plays an important role as the main procurement vehicle for large 

Public Sector construction projects in North Wales. The current Framework will 

expire in May 2023. The process of creating a replacement usually takes one year, 

this report outlines how the unprecedented effect of COVID alongside the current 

economic climate and the nature of how capital projects are funded, has impacted 

the delivery of the NWCP programme of works in the region, including those within 

Denbighshire County Council, and the options available to continue to deliver 

projects using it. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. A decision is required on whether to re-procure a new Framework or to extend the 

current NWCP Framework for up to one year. This is to allow Public Sector bodies 

in North Wales, including Denbighshire County Council, to be clear as to how they 

will procure their construction projects going forward, in particular, those projects 

that were originally intended to use the Framework and/or were part of the initial 

programme of works. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. To approve extending the Framework for one year, will provide time for projects to 

continue to be let as per the programme and allow time for expected new UK and 

Welsh Government procurement legislation to be released and/or embedded into 

the processes, to be utilised when procuring a new Framework.  

4. Report details 

4.1. The framework is set up to deliver a range of major projects across North Wales 

with a combined value of £500 million and includes projects valued over £250K, 

the framework is split over five value lots. 

4.2. As well as the six North Wales Local Authorities (NWLA), the framework can and is 

also utilised by other public sector bodies across the region, providing value for 

money and wider benefits to North Wales. 

4.3. The framework pioneered the delivering Community Benefits making it a core part 

of the procurement approach; a set of Community Benefit principles is incorporated 

into the Framework’s operation to unlock wider economic, social and 

environmental regeneration.   

4.4. One of the framework priorities is sustainability, it embraces carbon reduction 

initiatives and provides training to stakeholders to ensure the efforts contribute to 

Zero Carbon and environmental targets and obligations. 

4.5. The framework aims to secure improvements to the built environment by delivering 

the best value, energy-efficient, sustainable facilities; utilising the highest possible 

safety and environment standards, innovation and collaboration, and creating a 

lasting legacy through targeted investment in employment and communities. 

4.6. It operates in an environment of openness, transparency and flexibility, which 

enables stakeholders to embrace the partnership approach. 

4.7. Construction Market Situation following COVID and Brexit 

Following a period of unprecedented changes in the world and in particular in the 

UK due to Brexit, COVID and more recently the Ukraine War, the way the 

construction industry has to operate has significantly changed. To understand the 

extent and impact of these challenges we hosted a series of meetings with clients 

and contractors, the NWCP engagement, gave us a clearer view of the issues 

facing the construction industry and how contractors are responding to these 

challenges. 

Page 38



 
 

4.8. The overall issues are listed in the full report, followed by recommendations that 

we believe enable both clients and contractors to travel through this transition in 

the best possible way and continue to operate collaboratively. 

See Appendix 1 – Future of the NWCP full report  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. The Framework will continue to support priorities within the current (2017 – 2022) 

Corporate Plan in terms of: 

5.2. Environment – by supporting the reduction of carbon emissions from Council 

assets through the delivery of new and refurbished buildings. It will also contribute 

to the adoption of Zero Carbon initiatives that enable procuring bodies to manage 

the carbon footprint of their asset, as well as providing training to Clients and the 

Supply chain. 

5.3. Resilient Communities – by using our expenditure as a lever to deliver 

Community Benefits that support people to plan and shape their communities. 

5.4. Young People – by continuing to build schools via the 21st Century Schools 

programme and ensuring that each contract provides opportunities to develop 

skills, work experience, career advice and mentoring, as well as creating local 

sustainable employment.  

5.5. The Framework intends to maximise opportunities to reduce carbon emissions in 

the built environment by 

5.5.1. Introducing a mechanism to identify baseline carbon emissions 

from its Contractors, reviewing the annual reduction targets of their main 

contractors including their supply chain and reviewing their performance 

against achieving Net Zero Carbon  

5.5.2. Nurture and promote a common collaborative environment of 

industry-leading best practices and continuous improvement, working towards 

Net Zero Carbon emissions 

5.5.3. Provide regular and objective evidence of contractor’s 

performance against the carbon emission reduction targets they have set out 

for themselves in their Achieving Net Zero Plan 

5.5.4. Challenge the status quo; stimulate creativity and innovation; 

promote shared learning 

Page 39



 
 

5.5.5. Maintain quality, safety, functionality and affordability 

 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. An Inter Authority Agreement has been signed by each of the NWLA committing to 

pay £15K each per annum per Local Authority, this may need to be extended for 

an extra year or decide that the agreement remains in place for as long as we 

continue to have a Framework. 

6.2. For Denbighshire, this sum is already budgeted within existing operational budgets.  

These arrangements support the employment of the Framework Management 

Team and associated activity.  

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. The Framework has a positive impact not only in Denbighshire but across the 

North Wales region by creating new facilities for public use.  This includes; building 

new schools, construction of which protects existing and creates new jobs in the 

construction sector, through the Framework Community Benefits approach this 

work also provides the opportunity for community involvement and engagement 

and helps promote vibrant, culture and the Welsh language. 

7.2. The framework place importance on delivering the greatest benefit from the 

investment made ensuring there is a positive impact on local communities. 

7.3. Stakeholders were involved and consulted for this assessment, it was first 

assessed during the development of the business case.  

For the full Well Being Impact Assessment See Appendix 2 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. Clients and Contractors appointed to the Framework continue to express their 

commitment and have been engaged before initiating these processes. 

Page 40



 
 

8.2. The Framework was developed in collaboration with senior managers, 

construction, legal and procurement professionals from all the six partner 

authorities. 

8.3. Other Public Organisations were consulted and engaged with as potential users of 

the Framework. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1. The North Wales Construction Partnership – Main Contractor Framework has 

helped deliver a range of major projects across North Wales. It is important that the 

framework continues, or is replaced, in order to minimise the risk of any delays to 

projects. Advice appears to be that the proposed extension is an acceptable way 

forward from a legal / procurement perspective. The extension does not entail any 

direct additional costs. The proposed extension is therefore fully supported. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

The following key risks have been identified: 

10.1. Legal challenge concerning the extension of the Framework – 

legal advice has been sought to limit the risk of a challenge. There is also a 

precedent from SEWSCAP Framework, our equivalent in South East Wales, in 

January 2022 successfully achieved a year extension without challenges. 

10.2. Lack of engagement from Contractors on the Framework – 

Continue to work closely in a partnership manner that has to date enabled us to 

successfully procure projects during the current challenging times. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. The power to make decisions is contained in S2 Local 

Government Act 2000, S111 Local Government Act 1972, and Regulation 33 

Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  

11.2. Extensions to frameworks are permitted under Regulation 72 of 

the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as amended ("PCR")  

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Future of the North Wales Construction Framework 

Background 

The North Wales Construction Partnership Framework is the second generation of local authority-
driven construction frameworks in the region; it was built on the award-winning work of its 
predecessor and plays a central role in enabling change in how construction projects are procured in 
the region. 

The framework is set up to deliver a range of major projects across North Wales with a combined 
value of £500 million and includes projects valued over £250K, the framework is split over five value 
lots. 

As well as the six North Wales Local Authorities (NWLA), the framework can and is also utilised by 
other public sector bodies across the region, providing value for money and wider benefits to North 
Wales. 

The framework pioneered the delivering Community Benefits making it a core part of the 
procurement approach; a set of Community Benefit principles are incorporated into the 
Framework’s operation to unlock wider economic, social and environmental regeneration. 

The framework supports the development of a new generation of construction professionals, by 
providing training opportunities and creating local jobs through each project. 

One of the framework priorities is sustainability, it embraces carbon reduction initiatives and 
provides training to stakeholders to ensure the efforts are allocated in the correct places. 

The framework aims to secure improvements to the built environment through delivery of best 
value, energy-efficient, sustainable facilities; utilising the highest possible safety and environment 
standards, innovation and collaboration, whilst creating a lasting legacy through targeted investment 
in employment and communities. 

It operates in an environment of openness, transparency and flexibility, which enables stakeholders 
to embrace a partnership approach. 

This will address the Programme for Wales' priorities and continue to deliver improvement in the 
way construction procurement works for the region. 

Construction Market Situation following COVID and Brexit 

Following a period of unprecedented changes in the world and in particular in the UK due to Brexit, 
COVID and more recently the Ukraine War, the way the construction industry operates has 
significantly changed. To understand the extent and impact of this shift we hosted a series of 
meetings with clients and contractors, forming the NWCP which gave us a clearer view of the issues 
facing the construction industry and how contractors are responding to the challenges presented. 

The overall issues are listed, followed by recommendations that we believe enable both clients and 
contractors to go through this transition in the best possible way and continue to operate 
collaboratively. 

Issues Identified 

APPENDIX 1

Page 43



2 

• Material shortages such as,
 Concrete products generally, such as fence posts, gravel boards, lintels
 Cement
 Timber in general – significant price increases
 Chipboard flooring
 Roof trusses – significant price increases
 Timber fencing panels and posts – significant price increases
 Cold rolled steel members – significant price increases
 Plasterboard and plastering products in general – significant price increases
 Reinforcing bar and associated products – significant price increases, prices only

held for 24 to 48 hours
 Insulation
 Roof tiles
 UPVC windows and doors, this list is not exhaustive.

• Significant price raises with quotes only effective for 30 days or less. In some instances,
quotes are only valid for just one day

• Order books on supply chains are shut
• Fixed prices are non-existing. Changes can happen daily
• The overall market is busy; However, contractors prioritise Framework work compared to

the open market as the former tends to be more collaborative
• Some project tenders are transferring too much risk to contractors - the feeling of the

industry is that it cannot be sustained at this level
• Refurbishment projects as single-stage D&B transfer big risks and are resource-intensive
• Finding lengthy delays with planning
• Contractors have limited resources there is a need to avoid tenders that are ‘resource

hungry’
• Sometimes design periods are compressed and not realistic
• Design consultants are overstretched
• Shortage of site accommodation/welfare units. Contractors are doubling up on these units

so that they can maintain social distancing on sites, as a consequence of COVID. Toilet units
have been particularly difficult to source.

The following recommendations were issued to all partners to assist with adapting and responding 
to the issues outlined above.  

• Commit to transparency in the pipeline, continuous communication, dialogue and feedback
• Complete Expression of Interest form with as much relevant information as possible
• Consider the appropriate tendering approach for the type of job
• Consider using the principles of Early Contractor Involvement (ECI)/ two-stage route,

whether it is Design & Build or traditional approach
• Stakeholders to consider  ‘The Construction Playbook’ when developing projects, in

particular when it comes to risk
• Provide feedback and notice before a project landing
• Work closely with the supply chain
• Consider forward ordering to deal with price uncertainty
• Client to consider agile procurement process
• Benchmark with up to date costs

Page 44

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/941536/The_Construction_Playbook.pdf


3 

• A more collaborative approach towards managing risk should be considered from the onset
by highlighting project risks in a risk register to accompany tender documents (or ideally
discussed upfront as part of an ECI procurement process) and agree which items can be
sensibly transferred to the contractor, which items are retained by the client (e.g. where
planning permission hasn’t yet been granted or conditions attached) and which risks should
be shared (ratio to be agreed before contract award).

• Rethink how the risk of holding prices as material costs increase is managed as it can’t be
retained by a contractor.

• Project Budgets need to be thoroughly reviewed and reappraised. The scope needs to be
realistically aligned to the budget

It is also noted that the single-stage procurement process for projects valued over £2m is no longer 
within their ‘risk frame’, this was a risk for them previously but its impact has been exacerbated by 
their inability to hold prices for long periods. 

Existing supply chains are being prioritised to ensure that quality and price are delivered, however, 
this may have an impact on the wider supply chain. 

Impact on the NWCP & projects in the region 

The uncertainty generated by these events, alongside how Capital projects are funded has had an 
impact on the delivery of projects, the programme of works has encountered significant delays 
resulting in a reduction in the number of projects procured and delivered against the intended 
programme. 

During part of 2020 and 2021, most of the NWLA and other partners put their programmes on hold 
due to uncertainty in their ability to match fund projects and other internal issues. 

Out of a confirmed programme of works of £330m only £150m has been tendered and a contractor 
has been appointed, the capacity of the Framework is £500m 

The Framework has one year to go but it is unlikely that we will be able to appoint contractors to 
£200m+ worth of projects in one year.  

The re-procurement of a new framework has a cost attached, which will occur whether it is done 
now or in a year. It is also time-consuming, it takes approximately one year to set up a Framework of 
this size and costs around £70K, it also means that resources currently supporting the delivery of 
projects will be redirected to initiate the re-procurement process from July 2022. 

Additionally, not having a Framework in place for some time will result in benefits being missed, 
additional costs to the procuring bodies having to go to the open market and loss of engagement 
with stakeholders 

The market is changing faster than usual, and understanding it when designing new frameworks is 
key to their success. Several initiatives are being developed by the Central and Welsh governments 
that need to be incorporated into new Frameworks as well as understanding that there may be 
opportunities in the new Procurement Regulations and CPR (Corporate Procurement Regulations). 

Page 45



4 

Responding to the challenge 

Option 1  

Let the Framework run its course and let it end in June 2023 – Re-procurement needs to start in 
June 2022 at the latest to have a chance for a new Framework to be in place. 

The cost for re-procuring will be between £70 - £80K, this cost will be the same whether we start 
the procurement process in June 2022 or in June 2023. 

The team for some time now has had resourcing issues due to long term sickness. We expect this to 
be alleviated later this year as payment from other Public Sector bodies for using the Framework 
may allow us to put a budget in place for recruiting temporary support, however, this support will 
need to be redirected to the re-procurement process rather than support existing projects. 

Option 2 

Extend for 6 months 

Option 3 

Extend for 1 year 

For options 2 and 3, 

Extensions to frameworks are permitted under Regulation 72 of the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 as amended ("PCR") where the extension falls within one or more of the stipulated safe 
harbours under Regulation 72 and is therefore not considered to be a "substantial" change. Where 
an extension falls within one of the safe harbours, the requirement to re-procure is not triggered. 

Advice has been sought regarding the ability and risks to extend the Framework and we are satisfied 
that the conditions are met. 

Extending the Framework will give the Public Sector Bodies in North Wales the opportunity to 
deliver the projects as intended. Contractors and their supply chain will continue to deliver the 
benefits incorporated into their Framework agreement. 

The cost for re-procuring will be between £70 - £80K, this cost will be the same whether we start the 
procurement process in June 2022 or in June 2023. 

Stakeholder Position  

The users and any other interested parties 

• Six NWLA - are on board and have been consulted
• Other Public Sector bodies in North Wales
• Contractors currently appointed to the Framework - have been consulted and are also

supportive of an extension
• Other stakeholders involved with the Framework also find the proposal of an extension

positive

Page 46



5 

• Contractors not currently on the Framework – expressions of interest have been sent to take
part in the next generation of Frameworks

Reasons the extension is needed  

An extension will provide the following 

• Time for the NWLA to add other Public Sector Bodies to continue to deliver their projects for
an extra year

• Time for the team to familiarise itself with the new market realities, to be able to choose the
appropriate procurement and design the Framework to serve its purpose effectively

• Opportunity for the Framework to meet its intended purpose
• Speed up appointment and delivery of projects by appointing contractors in a swift manner
• To provide opportunities to local SMEs
• Continue to provide a programme of works
• Work in partnership with the LA and contractors

Expected Benefits or return on investment 

• Enable Local companies to grow
• Deliver projects faster and more efficiently than the open market
• Continue with a partnership approach
• Support the education and development of the Local SMEs
• Provide benefits for the region in line with the Future Generations Act
• Imbed Zero Carbon KPIs and methodologies
• Incorporate circular economy principles

Risks 

A legal challenge concerning the extension of the Framework – legal advice has been sought to limit 
the risk of a challenge. There is also a precedent from SEWSCAP Framework, our equivalent in South 
East Wales, who in January 2022 successfully achieved a year extension without challenges. 

Lack of engagement from Contractors on the Framework – Continue to work closely in a partnership 
manner that has to date enable us to successfully procure projects during the current challenging 
times. 

Framework Outcomes for Denbighshire County Council to date 

Denbighshire utilises the NWCP Framework for relevant projects and benefits from its pioneering 
approach to Community Benefits.  Framework suppliers commit to KPIs around: 

• Local labour – helping to maximise local employment from Denbighshire spend
• Local supply chain use – supporting local suppliers to benefit from Denbighshire spend with

larger contractors
• Developing the workforce via training and development – encouraging and expecting

capacity building amongst the sector, including any local sub-contractors.  This can include
short courses and apprenticeships.

Page 47



6 

• Fair Payment agreements - to pay sub-contractors for work delivered on Denbighshire
funded projects, especially valuable to local sub-contractors

• Resource use targets – outcomes include reducing waste to landfill, reducing water usage,
optimising energy usage

• Engagement with schools and collages – support to local pupils and students via outreach to
highlight future career potentials, STEM subject support, interview practice and mentoring

• Work placements – short work placement opportunities for young people (under 16) and
also unemployed persons.  These can range from 2 days to 2 weeks and act as a taster into a
construction career but also as an introduction to work and the workplace, especially for
those who are long term unemployed

• Projects delivered with Zero accidents and Zero Defects
• Donations and support to local community groups

Procured through the Framework, three Denbighshire projects were delivered: 

Welsh Language Centre (Ysgol Glan Clwyd) 

The project impacted by Covid-19 restrictions 

• 3 work placements delivered against a target of 1
• 2 apprentices and 2 new jobs created
• 2 educational events achieved – 100 pupils and 6 teaching staff engaged
• Exceed target of payment to sub-contractors

Y Bont/Coroner’s Court (at County Hall) 

Project delivered during the height of Covid-19 restrictions, schools education via remote teaching 
and limited ability to offer work placement opportunities. 

• 87% of sub-contracted spend was within a 30-mile radius of Ruthin
• 67% of the 51 people on-site lived in Denbighshire postcode area
• 4 apprenticeships supported on the project
• Unable to meet targets on school and college engagement due to Covid restrictions

Oak Tree Centre extension 

The project is still active, not yet completed.  

• On-going Community Benefit themed meetings with the principal contractor, actions already
undertaken include:

o Link up to Working Denbighshire to maximise the impact of work placements and
local recruitment

Other projects of the Framework programme of works are: 

• Denbigh Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn
• Llangollen Ysgol Bryn Collen / Gwernant Redevelopment
• Llangollen provision - 21c projects
• Rhyl provision – 21c projects

Page 48



7 

• Bodelwyddan school extension
• Rhyl - Queens Market Redevelopment Phase 1
• Denbigh - Twm o'r Nant - Childcare Provision
• Rhyl - Dewi Sant - Childcare Provision
• Botanical Gardens Depot

On the next page we include a selection of reports for active Denbighshire projects. 

On Appendix 3 there is a snapshot of projects delivered or in the process of being delivered across 
the region. 

Page 49



Denbighshire Projects

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

1 - -

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

3 1 2

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

1 - 1

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

1 - -

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

4 2 7

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

8 2 12

4b. Traineeships or Equivalent
Traineeship week (Completed)

13 - -

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

- - 1

1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

- - 3

7. Case Study
Report (Reported)

- - 1

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

- - 2

Va
lu

es

1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted)) 3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted))
5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))
4b. Traineeships or Equivalent (Traineeship week (Completed)) 6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded))
1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted)) 7. Case Study (Report (Reported))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created))
5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))

Coroners and Y Bont at County hall Extension of the Oak Tree Centre Welsh Language Block
0.8

1

2

4

6

8

10

20

40

A
ct

iv
it

y

C
o

ro
n

er
s 

an
d

 Y
 B

o
n

t 
at

 

C
o

u
n

ty
 h

al
l

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 o
f t

h
e 

O
ak

 

Tr
ee

 C
en

tr
e

W
el

sh
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

B
lo

ck

Page 50



2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

- - 2

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

- - 26

A
ct

iv
it

y

C
o

ro
n

er
s 

an
d

 Y
 B

o
n

t 
at

 

C
o

u
n

ty
 h

al
l

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 o
f t

h
e 

O
ak

 

Tr
ee

 C
en

tr
e

W
el

sh
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

B
lo

ck

Page 51



Coroners Court and Y Bont Supply Chain Mapping  

 Mile radius from Home address to Construction Site 

 

0-10 miles 11-20 miles 21-30 miles 31 -50 miles > 50 miles Total number of 
Individuals on site   

% of individuals working 
on site 12% 22% 37% 27% 2% 100%   

No of individuals 6 11 19 14 1 51   

% of individuals living 
within the local authority 

postcode   

67% 

            

% of individuals living 
within Wales 

83% 
            

 

 

 

 

90% total expenditure was within 30 mile radius 

12%

22%

37%

27%

2%

% of individuals working on site

0-10 miles

11-20 miles

21-30 miles

31 -50 miles

> 50 miles

Page 52



Oak Tree Supply Chain Mapping 
 

 

 

 

+

 

 

81% total expenditure was within 30 mile radius 

0-10 miles11-20 miles 21-30 miles 31 -50 miles > 50 miles

Total 
number of 
Individuals 

on site
% of individuals 
working on site 14% 0% 7% 48% 31% 100%

No of individuals 4 0 2 14 9 29
% of individuals living 

within the local 
authority postcode  

33%

% of individuals living 
within Wales 50%

Mile radius from Home address to Construction Site

Page 53



Welsh Language Block Supply Chain Mapping 

 

 

 

39% total expenditure was within 30 mile radius 

 

Page 54



8 
 

References to any associated documents or products such as a Corporate plan, Service Business 
Plans or external drivers 

• Denbighshire County Council Corporate Plan 
• Zero Carbon policies 
• WG Procurement policies 
• Modern Slavery Act 
• Future Generations Act 
• Freedom of information act 
• Welsh Language policy 
• WG & DCC CB Policy 
• Zero defects 
• Project Bank Account 
• Construction Playbook  

2022 

• WPPN 02/22: Transparency – publication of contract award notices 

2021 

• WPPN 12/21: Decarbonisation through procurement - Addressing CO2e in supply chains 

• WPPN 11/21: Ethical employment in supply chains for the Welsh public sector 

• WPPN 10/21: Blacklisting in the construction industry for the Welsh public sector 

• WPPN 09/21: Sourcing building materials for construction projects in Wales 

• WPPN 08/21: Cyber Essentials 

• WPPN 07/21: Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs)-friendly procurement 

• WPPN 06/21: Decarbonisation through procurement - Taking account of Carbon Reduction 
Plans 

• WPPN 05/21: Guidance on reserving below threshold procurements for Welsh public 
sector contracting authorities 

• WPPN 04/21: Guidelines for deploying Welsh Government project bank account policy 

• WPPN 03/21: Project bank accounts policy 

• WPPN 02/21: Reserving contracts with businesses with a public service mission 

• WPPN 01/21: Sourcing steel in major construction and infrastructure projects in Wales 

 

Cost 

An Inter Authority Agreement has been signed by each of the NWLA committing to pay £15K each 
per annum per Local Authority, this may need to be extended for an extra year or decide that the 
agreement remains in place for as long as we continue to have a Framework. 

Page 55

https://gov.wales/wppn-02-22-transparency-publication-of-contract-award-notices
https://gov.wales/wppn-12-21-decarbonisation-through-procurement
https://gov.wales/wppn-11-21-ethical-employment-in-supply-chains-for-the-welsh-public-sector
https://gov.wales/wppn-10-21-blacklisting-in-the-construction-industry-for-the-welsh-public-sector
https://gov.wales/wppn-09-21-sourcing-building-materials-for-construction-projects-in-wales
https://gov.wales/wppn-08-21-cyber-essentials
https://gov.wales/wppn-07-21-sme-friendly-procurement
https://gov.wales/wppn-06-21-decarbonisation-through-procurement-taking-account-of-carbon-reduction-plans
https://gov.wales/wppn-06-21-decarbonisation-through-procurement-taking-account-of-carbon-reduction-plans
https://gov.wales/wppn-05-21-guidance-on-reserving-below-threshold-procurements-for-welsh-public-sector-contracting-authorities
https://gov.wales/wppn-05-21-guidance-on-reserving-below-threshold-procurements-for-welsh-public-sector-contracting-authorities
https://gov.wales/wppn-04-21-guidelines-for-deploying-welsh-government-project-bank-account-policy
https://gov.wales/wppn-0321-project-bank-accounts-policy
https://gov.wales/wppn-02-21-reserving-contracts-with-businesses-with-a-public-service-mission
https://gov.wales/welsh-procurement-policy-note-0121-sourcing-steel-in-major-construction-and-infrastructure-projects-in-wales


9 

For Denbighshire, this sum is already budgeted for within existing operational budgets.  This 
arrangement supports the employment of the Framework Management Team and associated 
activity.  

An income generation strategy exists alongside these contributions in the form of a fee that is 
charged to other Public Sector Bodies wishing to utilise the Framework.  

Decisions on how any surplus income generated through the Framework is spent are agreed upon by 
the Framework’s Strategic Management Board – which has senior officer representation from all six 
North Wales authorities (Gary Williams is Denbighshire’s representative on this Board). Such income 
could be spent on additional training, supply chain initiatives, or potentially shared out between the 
partner authorities. 

Recommendation 

To approve extending the Framework for one year, will provide time for projects to continue to be 
let as per the programme and time for new legislation to be released and/or embedded into the 
processes, to be utilised when procuring a new Framework.  

Page 56



North Wales Construction Framework Phase 2

Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of a proposal on the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-
being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 227

Brief description: Renewal of a Framework to procure public sector construction projects
in north Wales in partnership with the North Wales Local Authorities

Date Completed: 19/04/2017 16:19:20 Version: 1

Completed By: Tania Silva

Responsible Service: Legal, HR & Democratic Services

Localities affected by the proposal: Whole County,

Page 57



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how the
proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a manner which seeks
to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

Could some small changes in your thinking produce a better result?
(3 out of 4 stars)

Actual score: 22/ 24.

Summary of impact

Wellbeing Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language Positive

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

The Framework will overall have a positive impact not only in Denbighshire but in the north Wales region by
creating new facilities for public use including new schools which will create jobs in the construction sector,
improve educational attainment, provide opportunity for community involvement and engagement and help
promote vibrant, culture and welsh language.
The framework place importance on delivering the greatest benefit from the investment made ensuring there is a
positive impact on local communities.

Page 58



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:
The large investment in the region will most likely boost the economy through the
creation of jobs, training initiatives and the creation of quality new educational
facilities.

Positive consequences identified:

Use of recyclable and recycled materials
Energy Efficient buildings. Breeam Excellent is the target for the majority of project in the programme.
Imbedded community benefits deliver on each project, support the local supply chain.
Delivers construction jobs
Sustainable targeted recruitment and training initiatives incorporated into the Framework Agreement and each
project
There will be training and apprenticeship places as an integral part of construction contracts.
The majority of buildings under this Framework will be for education, a travel plan is likely to be included as part
of the project.
On educational project the buildings will provide breakfast and afterschool clubs.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Materials such as concrete are unavoidable and will have an impact on the environment
Potential disruption to local businesses during the construction phase.
None identified
None identified
Buildings in remote rural areas are likely to face public transport shortage.
None identified

Mitigating actions:

Each project will be reviewed individual in order to minimise negative impact. The new Framework is design to
create opportunities for medium and small local businesses.

Page 59



A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The new buildings will be developed under an strict set of regulations to minimise
their impact and where we are developing on brown field sites it will create the
opportunity to improve the environment. The Framework has an specific requirement
to educate the community on environmental issues.

Positive consequences identified:

working to the BREEAM target will mean that biodiversity issues will be incorporated into the whole construction
process.
A lot of the adverse impact will be addressed at the planning stage and working to the BREEAM target will mean
that biodiversity issues will be incorporated into the whole construction process.
The target for projects under the Framework Is 100% waste diverted from land field and on site separation of
waste.
The buildings will be far more energy efficient than any building they replace.
We target working with local companies and where possible buying material locally to reduce travel requirements
To educate the community through the projects on how the build handles biodiversity and the incorporation or
renewables, via site visits and displays.
Some of the buildings that will be deliver through this project will be in flood risk areas, but the adverse impact
will be addressed at the planning stage.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Any significant construction site has the possibility of having a negative impact on natural environment. Some
sites may have protected species presence which will require special action.
Any significant construction site has the possibility of having a negative impact on natural environment. Some
sites may have protected species presence which will require special action.
There are products historically used in construction that by their nature are not recyclable.
Some specified products in builds may be source abroad and therefore travel long distances
None identified
None identified

Mitigating actions:

Some new building will be on green field sites but we would have undertaken an options appraisal to determine
the best location and always seek to minimise the environmental impact of the build.

Page 60



A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:
It will increase opportunities for healthy leaving and active lifestyles whilst improving
the built environment and creative a positive feel for the place where they live 'sense
of pride'.

Positive consequences identified:

When planning a school an important consideration is for children to be able to walk or cycle to and from school
providing cycle storage.
As part of the business case for a school safe environments where children can play in the evenings, weekends and
holidays are inbuilt into the project.
Creating a dinning hall provide an environment where children want to be which encourage healthy eating as well
as providing healthy options as part of the menu.
We create environment where more children can participate in sport and becoming hooked on sport for life.
outdoor and indoor spaces to practice.
We create positive learning environments designed to have a positive impact on pupils, offering opportunities to
learn new skills and practice sports.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

None identified
None identified
None identified
None identified

Mitigating actions:

N/A

Page 61



A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The building delivered through the Framework will be fully accessible and where
appropriate the design of new buildings will incorporate the needs of other protected
groups, through the construction process the training opportunities and work
placements offers will help tackle poverty on those further from the job market.

Positive consequences identified:

All new buildings delivered through the Framework will be fully accessible, religious requirement will be
considering at design stage.
As part of the Community Benefits inbuilt into the Framework agreement, tackling disadvantaged groups and
those further from the market through work experience, apprenticeships and job opportunities through each the
projects (ie. Prince's Trust Programmes). Additionally grants are provided to specific projects in the community
that will improve living standards.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

It would be difficult to design every building to cater for every potential need as a protected requirements ie. we
wouldn't be able to provide prayer rooms where a Muslim user is not currently identified.
None identified

Mitigating actions:

Page 62



A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The programme is likely to create a sense of community through positive engagement
and participation from the community during the development of the project, the final
building will improve the attractiveness of the area and be designed to create safe
environments.

Positive consequences identified:

Safe environment is part of the BREEAM process, all projects need to meet this requirements, safety elements are
considered in the design process.
Community engagement is an integral part of the Framework and building users have opportunities to have an
input into the design elements of the building through small community projects.
The Framework will deliver projects that will have a positive impact on the physical appearance of the areas where
those are built, increasing the sense of pride in the community.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

If the design is wrong it may create areas vulnerable to vandalism and antisocial behaviour.
Some people may not want to be involved.
In rural areas a new building may detract from the natural feel of the area.

Mitigating actions:

By continuing to work closely with the community.

Page 63



A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

Overall the provision of new or refurbished buildings trough the programme will
encourage greater use of the welsh language and provide opportunities for cultural
events. Larger national contractors may need to develop processes to engage closely
with the local communities to understand their needs and continue to promote
communication through Welsh medium.

Positive consequences identified:

We will be delivering new schools where the use of welsh language is inbuild into the programme, where we
deliver welsh medium school the new modern facilities are likely to attract greater number of pupils. The
contractors in the Framework are employing welsh speaking staff to be able to improve their delivery in Welsh
speaking regions.
Under the Framework all of the contractors will be required to work in line with the Welsh language standards, this
will have a particular impact on the larger national contractors who may not have had it as a requirement if the
contract are let through a different procurement route.
Where we are refurbishing existing building we are sensitive of the original architecture of the building, specially
where the building is listed or in a conservation area.
The building themselves as public buildings will create venues for a whole range of cultural events.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

None identified
Larger national contractors may need to develop processes to engage closely with the local communities to
understand their needs and continue to promote communication through Welsh medium
Development of new public buildings may result on the closure of other existing public buildings it may result on
the loss of culture and heritage in the community where the building is closed.

Mitigating actions:

The Framework Agreement will include the use of Welsh language standards as a requirement so that in every
project let the client can specify the use of welsh language, also through the identification of Local needs the
contractors can tailor their delivery of Community Benefits to maximise their impact.
On a project level Business Case the issues identified against negative impact to the Welsh language should be
address earlier at the planning stage, before building design work commence.

Page 64



A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact: The Framework will be put together and procured in a way that takes account of local
supply chains and human rights issues.

Positive consequences identified:

We positively encourage and facilitate local supply chain, the Framework will be fully OJEU compliant. The
framework has imbedded fair payment practices for subcontractors, use of project bank accounts is encouraged.
Through the procurement process all contractors on the Framework are required to meet at least minimum
standards for H&S, employment rights, etc. this requirement feeds down to their subcontractors and suppliers.
Design buildings better suited to provide venues for shared use with the community and other organisations.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Some products and suppliers may only be sourced internationally having a negative impact on local suppliers.
Whilst we have the right to audit the contractors and their supply chain on these issues, we do not have the
resources to undertake such an audit
None identified.

Mitigating actions:

The building design should be done with sustainability in mind and products should only be specified when the
positive impact is greater, a supply chain gap assessment should be on going to encourage companies to fill those
gaps in the region.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Anglesey report

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

3

1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

1

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

1

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

3

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

2

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

10

Va
lu

es

6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded)) 1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted))
2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created)) 3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted))
5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))

Ysgol Corn Hir Newydd (Final Band A Project)
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

A
ct

iv
it

y

Y
sg

o
l C

o
rn

 H
ir

 N
ew

yd
d

 

(F
in

al
 B

an
d

 A
 P

ro
je

ct
)

APPENDIX 3

Page 67



Anglesey County Council Projects 

Projects Let 

• Ysgol Corn Hir Newydd
• Llangefni Gateway Site Business
• Penrhos (Phase 2) Business Units

Page 68



Page 69



Bangor Uni

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

3

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

12

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

4

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

7

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

13

Va
lu

es

3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted)) 5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))

Medical Education Hub Anatomy & Clinical Skills Facility
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

A
ct

iv
it

y

M
ed

ic
al

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 H

u
b

 

A
n

at
o

m
y 

&
 C

lin
ic

al
 

Sk
ill

s 
F

ac
ili

ty

Page 70



Bangor University Project – Medical Education Hub Anatomy & Clinical Skills facility 

Page 71



Coleg Cambria Projects

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

4

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

6

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

1

2c. Jobs created for graduates
Graduate (Counted)

1

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

5

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

8

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

1

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

44

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

12

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

73

Va
lu

es

1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted)) 6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2c. Jobs created for graduates (Graduate (Counted))
3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted)) 5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))

Community Hub Building, Llysfasi
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

A
ct

iv
it

y

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

H
u

b
 

B
u

ild
in

g,
 L

ly
sf

as
i

Page 72



Coleg Cambria Project – Community Hub Building, Llysfasi 

Page 73



Conwy Projects

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

3 -

1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

1 -

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

3 -

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

1 -

2c. Jobs created for graduates
Graduate (Counted)

1 -

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

4 1

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

2 1

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

2 -

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

54 2

Va
lu

es

6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded)) 1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created))
2c. Jobs created for graduates (Graduate (Counted)) 3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted))
5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))

Bron Y Nant Disability Respite Centre and Café, Shop and Support Facilities Ysgol Pencae, Penmaenmawr
0.8

1

2

4

6

8

10

20

40

60

80

A
ct

iv
it

y

B
ro

n
 Y

 N
an

t 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 

R
es

p
it

e 
C

en
tr

e 
an

d
 

C
af

é,
 S

h
o

p
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

F
ac

ili
ti

es

Y
sg

o
l P

en
ca

e,
 

P
en

m
ae

n
m

aw
r

Page 74



Conwy County Council Projects 

Projects Let 

• Childcare Offer - Cynfran Playgroup (Classroom Ext)
• Ysgol Awel Y Mynydd - Welsh Medium/Childcare Offer - Two classroom extension
• Childcare Offer - Ysgol Feithrin, Glan Conwy (Classroom Ext)
• Bron Y Nant Disability Respite Centre and Café, Shop and Support Facilities
• Community Hub - Ysgol Pencae (Classroom Ext)

Page 75



Page 76



Flintshire Projects

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

3 3 1

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

4 4 5

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

3 6 4

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

1 3 2

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

4 4 1

4c. Technical or higher level of quali�cation
Accredited training week (Counted)

52 41 -

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

2 1 1

5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

2 1 1

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

3 2 2

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

10 1 5

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

215 66 37

Va
lu

es

1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted)) 6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created))
3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted)) 4c. Technical or higher level of qualification (Accredited training week (Counted))
5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted)) 1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted))
7. Case Study (Report (Reported)) 4b. Traineeships or Equivalent (Traineeship week (Completed))

Ysgol Glanrafon, Mold Extensions and Remodel Early Years Project Ysgol Brynffordd
0.4

1

2

4

10

20

40

100

200

400

A
ct

iv
it

y

Y
sg

o
l G

la
n

ra
fo

n
, M

o
ld

 

E
xt

en
si

o
n

s 
an

d
 R

em
o

d
el

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 P
ro

je
ct

Y
sg

o
l B

ry
n

ff
o

rd
d

Page 77



1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

- 1 -

7. Case Study
Report (Reported)

- 1 -

4b. Traineeships or Equivalent
Traineeship week (Completed)

- 22 4

A
ct

iv
it

y

Y
sg

o
l G

la
n

ra
fo

n
, M

o
ld

 

E
xt

en
si

o
n

s 
an

d
 R

em
o

d
el

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 P
ro

je
ct

Y
sg

o
l B

ry
n

ff
o

rd
d

Page 78



Flintshire County Council Projects 

Projects Let 

• Early Years Project
• Ysgol Brynfordd
• Ysgol Croes Atti
• Ysgol Glanrafon
• Ysgol Oakenholt

Page 79



Page 80



Gwynedd Projects

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

1 3

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

12 5

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

72 187

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

- 2

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

- 6

1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

- 1

7. Case Study
Report (Reported)

- 1

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

- 3

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

- 3

4c. Technical or higher level of quali�cation
Accredited training week (Counted)

- 77

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

- 2

Va
lu

es

3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted)) 5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted)) 1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted))
6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded)) 1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted))
7. Case Study (Report (Reported)) 2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created))
2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created)) 4c. Technical or higher level of qualification (Accredited training week (Counted))
5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5b. Qualifications - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 4b. Traineeships or Equivalent (Traineeship week (Completed))

Ysgol Cymerau, Pwllheli – Neuadd newydd a newidiadau – New hall and alteraltions Ysgol Y Faenol, Penrhosgarnedd, Bangor
0.4

1

2

4

10

20

40

100

200

400

A
ct

iv
it

y

Y
sg

o
l C

ym
er

au
, P

w
llh

el
i 

–
 N

eu
ad

d
 n

ew
yd

d
 a

 

n
ew

id
ia

d
au

 –
 N

ew
 h

al
l 

an
d

 a
lt

er
al

ti
o

n
s

Y
sg

o
l Y

 F
ae

n
o

l, 

P
en

rh
o

sg
ar

n
ed

d
, 

B
an

go
r

Page 81



5b. Quali�cations - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

- 6

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

- 6

4b. Traineeships or Equivalent
Traineeship week (Completed)

- 28

A
ct

iv
it

y

Y
sg

o
l C

ym
er

au
, P

w
llh

el
i 

–
 N

eu
ad

d
 n

ew
yd

d
 a

 

n
ew

id
ia

d
au

 –
 N

ew
 h

al
l 

an
d

 a
lt

er
al

ti
o

n
s

Y
sg

o
l Y

 F
ae

n
o

l, 

P
en

rh
o

sg
ar

n
ed

d
, 

B
an

go
r

Page 82



Gwynedd County Council Projects 

Projects Let 

• Ysgol Cymerau, Pwllheli – Neuadd newydd a newidiadau – New hall and alteraltions
• Ysgol Treferthyr, Cricieth - New community School
• Ysgol y Faenol, Bangor. - Extension and re-modlling
• Ysgol Ein Harglwyddes, Bangor - New faith School

Page 83



Page 84



North Wales Police Projects

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

1 9

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

8 20

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

- 1

7. Case Study
Report (Reported)

- 1

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

- 4

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

- 2

2c. Jobs created for graduates
Graduate (Counted)

- 1

4c. Technical or higher level of quali�cation
Accredited training week (Counted)

- 20

4b. Traineeships or Equivalent
Traineeship week (Completed)

- 6

Va
lu

es

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))
1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted)) 7. Case Study (Report (Reported))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created))
2c. Jobs created for graduates (Graduate (Counted)) 4c. Technical or higher level of qualification (Accredited training week (Counted))
4b. Traineeships or Equivalent (Traineeship week (Completed))

Construction of two-storey training / exercise building at Craig Y Ddywart Quarry, Rhewl Refurbishment works to Pwllheli PS
0.8

1

2

4

6

8

10

20

40

A
ct

iv
it

y

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
f t

w
o

-

st
o

re
y 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
/ 

ex
er

ci
se

 

b
u

ild
in

g 
at

 C
ra

ig
 Y

 

D
d

yw
ar

t 
Q

u
ar

ry
, R

h
ew

l

R
ef

u
rb

is
h

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

s 
to

 

P
w

llh
el

i P
S

Page 85



North Wales Police Projects 

Projects Let 

• Refurbishment works to Pwllheli PS
• Construction of two-storey training / exercise building at Craig Y Ddywart Quarry, Rhewl

Page 86



Page 87



Wrexham Projects

6. Training Plans
Plan (Recorded)

1 1 5 4 7

7. Case Study
Report (Reported)

1 - - - -

2a. Jobs created for apprentices
Apprentice (Created)

1 1 3 1 4

2b. Jobs created for new entrants
New person (Created)

1 2 1 - -

5a. Quali�cations - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

1 8 5 8 4

5c. Short duration courses - main contractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

8 38 42 29 31

5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor
Individual Opportunity (Awarded)

20 - - - 2

4a. Apprenticeship weeks
Apprenticeship week (Counted)

20 33 174 22 51

1a. Work Placements in Education
Student (Counted)

- 1 3 - 3

3. Careers events - not in education
Event (Counted)

- 2 2 2 4

4c. Technical or higher level of quali�cation
Accredited training week (Counted)

- 43 28 - 2

Va
lu

es

6. Training Plans (Plan (Recorded)) 7. Case Study (Report (Reported))
2a. Jobs created for apprentices (Apprentice (Created)) 2b. Jobs created for new entrants (New person (Created))
5a. Qualifications - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 5c. Short duration courses - main contractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded))
5d. Short duration courses - subcontractor (Individual Opportunity (Awarded)) 4a. Apprenticeship weeks (Apprenticeship week (Counted))
1a. Work Placements in Education (Student (Counted)) 3. Careers events - not in education (Event (Counted))
4c. Technical or higher level of qualification (Accredited training week (Counted)) 1b. Work Placements Not In Education (Work Experience Employee (Counted))
4b. Traineeships or Equivalent (Traineeship week (Completed))

Relocation of Wrexham Tourist Information
Centre

Borras Junior & Infant School Crown Building Wrexham Extension to Barkers Lane Bro Alun
0.4

1

2

4

10

20

40

100

200

400

A
ct

iv
it

y

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f W
re

xh
am

 

To
u

ri
st

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

C
en

tr
e

B
o

rr
as

 J
u

n
io

r 
&

 In
fa

n
t 

Sc
h

o
o

l

C
ro

w
n

 B
u

ild
in

g 

W
re

xh
am

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 t
o

 B
ar

ke
rs

 

La
n

e

B
ro

 A
lu

n

Page 88



1b. Work Placements Not In Education
Work Experience Employee (Counted)

- - - - 1

4b. Traineeships or Equivalent
Traineeship week (Completed)

- - - - 31

A
ct

iv
it

y

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f W
re

xh
am

 

To
u

ri
st

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

C
en

tr
e

B
o

rr
as

 J
u

n
io

r 
&

 In
fa

n
t 

Sc
h

o
o

l

C
ro

w
n

 B
u

ild
in

g 

W
re

xh
am

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 t
o

 B
ar

ke
rs

 

La
n

e

B
ro

 A
lu

n

Page 89



Wrexham County Council Projects 

Projects Let 

• Maelor School Penley
• Relocation of Wrexham Tourist Information Centre
• Ysgol Cynddelw
• Borras Junior & Infant School
• Crown Building Wrexham
• Extension to Barkers Lane
• Ysgol yr Hafod
• Bro Alun
• Wrexham Sheltered Housing Scheme

Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Cabinet 

Date of meeting 28th June 2022 

Lead Member / Officer Councillor Gwyneth Ellis, Lead Member for Finance, 

Performance and Strategic Assets / Steve Gadd, Head of 

Finance and Property 

Report author Steve Gadd, Head of Finance and Property 

Title Finance Report (May 2022/23 – including Budget Summary 

Report 2022/23) 

1. What is the report about? 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as agreed for 

2022/23. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital Plan as well as the 

Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current financial position 

and confirm the agreed service budgets for 2022/23.  

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1  Members note the budgets set for 2022/23 and progress against the agreed strategy. 

3.2  Members note the Budget Summary document included at Appendix 1 and, as in 

previous years, agree to its publication on the internet. 

3.3  Members approve the write off of unrecoverable Business Rates as detailed in 

Section 6.9. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



 
 

4. Report details 

The Budget Summary Report for 2022/23 has been included as Appendix 1 which 

provides details of the council’s revenue budget including departmental budget 

summaries, an update of the Capital Plan as well as the Housing Revenue Account and 

Housing Capital Plan.  

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2022/23 detailed in 

Appendix 2. The council’s net revenue budget is £233.693m (£216.818m in 21/22).  The 

position on service and corporate budgets is a forecast overspend of £1.000m. Narrative 

around the current risks and assumptions underlying this assessment are outlined in 

Section 6 and Appendix 3. 

The 2022/23 budget required service savings and efficiencies of £0.754m to be identified 

and agreed as detailed below: 

 Fees and Charges inflated in line with agreed Fees and Charges policy (£0.120m).  

 Operational efficiencies (£0.634m) mostly identified by services throughout the year 

and within Head Service delegated responsibility in consultation with Lead 

Members.  

 No savings were requested from Community Support Services or Schools. 

 

The operational savings and fees and charges increases are assumed to have been 

achieved.  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 

Priorities? 

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and delivery of the 

agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including corporate priorities. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Significant service narratives explaining variances and risks are detailed in Appendix 3 

however the following should also be noted:  

Page 94



 
 

6.1  Impact of Corona Virus and Inflation - The strategy of working in partnership with 

Welsh Government helped secure over £15m direct financial help last year. We continue 

to claim for payments to Self-isolation and Statutory Sick Pay Enhancement payments, 

along with Free School Meals direct payments. A contingency of £1.9m was agreed as 

part of the budget for 22/23 to fund any ongoing impact of the pandemic which cannot be 

claimed from WG this and in recognition of the increases in inflation at the time the budget 

was set. Early indications are that whilst the risk due to covid has diminished considerably, 

the inflationary risk has increased largely due to the war in Ukraine. The position will be 

monitored closely over the coming months  

6.2  Corporate Budgets – Although currently projected to break even the following risks 

are difficult to quantify at this early stage of the year: 

 Pay settlements for 2022/23 

 Call on contingencies relating to energy and other inflationary pressures (see 6.1) 

These will be monitored closely over the coming months. 

6.3  Education and Children’s Service – The current outturn prediction is £1.088m 

overspend.  Although an additional pressure of £750k was accepted as part of the agreed 

budget for 2022/23 this remains an area of concern. The majority of the pressure 

(£0.786m) relate to new residential and independent fostering placements, either which 

have commenced early this financial year or are now projected to continue longer than 

previously predicted (18 placements in total).  The projected overspend assumes we will 

receive Welsh Government funding of £0.880m this year, although £0.300m of this is yet 

to be confirmed. 

6.4  Community Support Service – Although an additional pressure of £3.127m was 

included in the budget for 2022/23 this service area remains a risk. Homelessness in 

particular remains an area of pressure. Although at this early stage we are hoping that the 

pressures will be able to be kept within the increased budget. As highlighted in the Final 

Outturn Report a service cash reserve of £2.440m is available to help fund any in year 

pressures. 

6.5  Schools - The budget agreed by Council for 2022/23 included a total net additional 

investment (excluding increases in Welsh Government grants) in schools delegated 

budgets of just over £4.4m. The first monitoring period for schools is at the end of June 

Page 95



 
 

when they will be submitting detailed monitoring reports. School balances carried forward 

into 2022/23 amounted to a net credit balance of £12.448m, which represents an increase 

of £6.778m on the deficit balances brought forward into 2021/22 of £5.670m. The 

movement from last year largely relates to the receipt of one-off funding and one-off 

savings relating to schools being closed for much of the year and, in particular, a number 

of large grants were received at the end of March. Although this is really welcome the one-

off nature of this funding should be born in mind. Much of the funding is committed to be 

utilised during 2022/23 to ensure schools and pupils continue to recover from the impact 

on the Covid pandemic. Education and Finance colleagues will work closely to help ensure 

that these balances are used in a timely and effective manner. There is a small 

underspend of £109k on non-delegated school budgets.                                                                                

6.6  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  The latest revenue position assumes a 

decrease in balances at year end of £4k as per the approved budget. HRA balances are 

therefore forecast to be £1.005m at the end of the year. The Capital budget of £22.8m is 

largely allocated between planned improvements to existing housing stock (£10m) and 

new build developments and acquisitions (£12.8m).  

6.7  Treasury Management – At the end of May, the council’s borrowing totalled 

£230.372m at an average rate of 3.83%. Investment balances were £23.9m at an average 

rate of 0.59%.  

6.8  A summary of the council’s Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 4. The approved 

capital plan is £62.64m with expenditure to date of £1.94m. Appendix 5 provides an 

update on the major projects included in the overall Capital Plan. The Capital Plan 

contingency has been increased by £1.676m to £2.176m (up from the £0.500m agreed in 

February). The increase is due to carrying forward the unhypothecated element of a 

capital grant received from WG in March. The increased contingency will help mitigate the 

risks to the overall programme of the impact of inflation on capital costs. 

6.9 Denbighshire County Council (DCC) is required by legislation to administer and collect 

Business Rates on behalf of the Welsh Government. An annual bill is issued providing 

businesses 10 monthly instalments in which to pay. Failure to make payment will result in 

the issue of reminders, final notices and summonses to attend Magistrates’ Court.   

However in some instances it is clear that no payments will be forthcoming and it is 

appropriate to consider writing the debt off. It is important that proper oversight is in place 

Page 96



 
 

for these decsions. Details of the two cases are included in Appendix 6 and we 

recommend that these debts are not recoverable and therefore should be written off. 

 . 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment?  

A Well-being Impact Assessments for the Council Tax rise was presented to Council on 25 

January. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 

and others? 

In addition to regular reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the budget process 

has been considered by SLT, Cabinet Briefing, Group Leaders and Council Briefing 

meetings. The School Budget Forum have been included in the proposals through-out the 

year. Trade Unions have been consulted through Local Joint Consultative Committee. The 

Covid pandemic has continued to impact on the level of consultation and engagement with 

the public, however plans are in place to engage early with all stakeholders during the 

budget process for 2023/24. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

It is welcome that we enter this financial year in a lot better position than we feared thanks 

to the continued Covid support from Welsh Government the better than anticipated budget 

settlement for 22/23. As in previous years the early monitoring is showing pressures in 

Children’s Services. Significant investment has gone into this area in recent years and it is 

expected that that need will continue. Initial pressures have already been included in the 

Medium Term Financial Plan and these will be kept under review, while the pressure for 

Children’s Services will need to be reviewed in the coming months. The contingencies held 

corporately will not be released this early in the financial year but look to be sufficient to 

cover the service pressures. 

Page 97



 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

This remains a challenging financial period and there is still uncertainty around the 

ongoing inflationary increases, Brexit and the financial strategy of the UK government in 

dealing with the long term financial impact on the public finances of the response to Covid 

and the cost of living crisis. Although the financial outlook looks uncertain, our finances are 

in a healthy position and a robust 3/5 year budget process has recently been approved by 

SLT, CET, Cabinet and scrutinised by the Governance and Audit Committee. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs.  

Page 98



 

 

 

Budget Summary Report 
2022 to 2023 

  

Page 99



Budget Summary 2022-23 

2 

 

Contents 

Introduction and Summary 3 

Welsh Government (WG) Settlement 2022/23 ................................................................. 3 
Revenue Budget 2022 to 2023 ......................................................................................... 4 

Denbighshire Revenue Funding 2022 to 2023 ................................................................. 7 
Budget areas and their financial allocations ..................................................................... 7 

Balances .......................................................................................................................... 8 
Council Tax ...................................................................................................................... 8 
Capital Plan 2022/23 ........................................................................................................ 9 
Housing Stock ................................................................................................................ 10 
Conclusion ..................................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix 1: Departmental Budget Summaries 13 

Summary Council Revenue Budget ............................................................................... 13 
Communities and Customers ......................................................................................... 13 
Education and Children’s Services ................................................................................. 14 

Schools .......................................................................................................................... 14 

Business Improvement and Modernisation .................................................................... 15 

Legal, HR & Democratic Services .................................................................................. 15 
Finance and Property ..................................................................................................... 16 

Highways & Environmental Services .............................................................................. 17 
Planning & Public Protection .......................................................................................... 18 
Community Support Services ......................................................................................... 20 
Leisure - Retained Budgets ............................................................................................ 21 
Corporate & Miscellaneous ............................................................................................ 21 

Appendix 2: Denbighshire County Council Capital Plan 2021/22 – 2024/25 23 

General Capital Plan ...................................................................................................... 23 

Capital Plan – By Service ............................................................................................... 23 

Appendix 3: Housing revenue account & housing capital plan 34 

Introduction .................................................................................................................... 34 
Housing Revenue Budget .............................................................................................. 34 
Welsh Government Rent Policy ..................................................................................... 34 

Housing Capital Plan ...................................................................................................... 35 
Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/23 ................................................................... 37 

 

Page 100



Budget Summary 2022-23 

3 

 

Introduction and Summary 

The purpose of this Budget Book is to highlight to Members, Officers and other interested 

parties, how Denbighshire County Council proposes to spend its Revenue and Capital 

budgets. It will also give details of the Housing Revenue Account and the Housing Capital 

Budget for 2022/23.  

The information presented in this booklet provides details of the direct costs of services 

which are under the control of budget holders. The 2022/23 budgets include items that 

have yet to be apportioned to services such as some inflationary contingencies and 

budgets to cover repairs and maintenance spend. 

The Council’s financial strategy is laid out in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 

This is a rolling three-year financial strategy and helps provide the context for the current 

year’s activity. 

Welsh Government (WG) Settlement 2022/23 

The Provisional Local Government Settlement for 2022/23 was received by the council on 

21 December 2021 and resulted in a positive settlement of +9.2%, compared to the Welsh 

average position of +9.4%. The Final Settlement received on 2 March 2022 confirmed this 

position. Within the announced figure Welsh Government have advised that there are a 

number of new responsibilities, not all of which have clear funding consequentials within 

the data. Those expectations that we are required to fund include the following: 

 All pay increases for both teaching and non-teaching posts are included within the 

RSG. 

 The responsibility to pay both our own Social Care and the private sector Social 

Care sector the Real Living Wage. 

 The core operational costs in connection with the new Corporate Joint Committee. 

 Mitigation for the fact that the Covid Hardship Fund will cease as from the end of 

the existing financial year. 

Page 101



Budget Summary 2022-23 

4 

 

As promised by WG the draft settlement includes indicative average settlement increases 

of 3.5% for 2023/24 and 2.4% for 2024/25 (estimated DCC figures would be 3.3% and 

2.2%). Although this is very welcome from a planning perspective it does represent a real 

terms decrease in funding when inflationary pressures are taken into account. It is clear 

that difficult decisions will continue to be required over the coming years. 

The Final Settlement showed a decrease in capital funding of £0.933m to £5.103m. 

Revenue Budget 2022/2023 

At the Council meeting on the 25 January 2022 members considered and approved 

Cabinet’s budget proposals and resulting impact on Council Tax for next financial year. 

The main features of the proposal included: 

 A positive settlement of +9.2% in the Council’s Local Government revenue 

settlement from Welsh Government. 

 A decrease in Welsh Government general capital funding of £0.933m. 

 Included in the Settlement are ‘transfers in’ (items previously funded by grant) of 

£0.275m which have been passported to the relevant service areas as in previous 

years: 

o Gate Fees for Regional Waste Recycling £0.109m 

o Social Care Workforce Grant £0.166m. 

 Pay pressures (including impact of increase in National Insurance) of £3.000m. 

 Price and energy inflation of £0.250m. 

 Fire Service Charge of £0.321m. 

 Allowance for increase in Council Tax Reduction Scheme of £0.350m. 

 Schools inflationary pressures are recognised amounting to £3.769m. 

 Schools demographic pressure of £0.606m. 

 £3.127m to recognise demand pressures and forecasts in Community Support 

Services as part of the council’s long term strategy to manage care budgets as well 

as recognising the agenda to ensure all care staff are paid the Real Living Wage 

Page 102



Budget Summary 2022-23 

5 

 

 £0.750m to recognise existing pressures in Education and Children’s Services 

relating to Out of County Placements and Recoupment. 

 £0.500m pressure to meet the increased costs within School Transport which is 

becoming evident in the monthly monitoring. 

 Investment in priorities amounting to £1.281m: 

o Further investment in Carbon Zero Project of £0.440m, £0.233m of this is for 

additional staff to undertake the necessary work and the remaining £0.207m 

is to fund the revenue impact of capital spend (prudential borrowing) 

o Final increase required for the Rhyl Flood scheme amounting to £0.081m 

o Increased Investment in Highways Capital Programme as proposed by 

Council (£4m capital) – requires an estimated £0.235m in Capital Finance 

Budget 

o £0.175m is required in order to maintain the existing levels of Capital Spend 

within the Block Allocations to make up for a shortfall in WG funding this year 

o This leaves £0.350m which it is proposed will be used in year to start to fund 

capital projects in year (eg those that were brought forward by the Horizon 

Scanning exercise or that come out of the new Corporate Plan). 

 Service non-strategic pressures of £1.111m – pressures and requirements for 

investments identified by services themselves and summarised in Appendix 2. 

 An estimated pressure of £0.300m has been included to pay for DCC’s element of 

the ongoing budget requirement for the new Corporate Joint Committee. 

 In light of the scale of the draft settlement indicating that there will be no general 

Covid Hardship Fund next financial year (but that funds have been included within 

the settlement) a Covid contingency of £1.988m has been included. It is hoped that 

this will be used for one-off unavoidable costs next financial year but that we would 

look to release this the following year to help balance the budget. 

The pressures identified above amount to £17.628m. A settlement of around 11% would 

have been required in order to fund all these pressures. The net +9.2% settlement 

Page 103



Budget Summary 2022-23 

6 

 

generates £15.005m additional revenue leaving a funding gap of £2.623m.  The following 

items are included in the proposals in order to bridge that gap: 

 Fees and Charges Income Budgets have been inflated in line with agreed Fees and 

Charges policy which increases external income by £0.120m. 

 Operational efficiencies amounting to £0.634m have been identified which are 

within Head Service delegated responsibility in consultation with Lead Members 

(see Appendix 2 for summary by category). 

 No savings have been requested from Community Support Services or Schools. 

 It is recommended that the Council Tax increases by 2.95% which, along with minor 

changes to the Council Tax Base, will generate £1.869m additional revenue. This 

compares to last year’s increase of 3.8% and 4.3% the year before that. 

The gross revenue budget for 2022/23 is £331.545m. The Council will generate or receive 

£41.914m in fees and charges and other income and receive £55.935m in specific grants, 

leaving a net revenue budget of £233.692m to be met from the Welsh Government and 

Council Tax payers. The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for 2022/23 is £139.190m and the 

council’s allocation from the National Non Domestic Rating (NNDR) pool is £34.451m, 

giving a total Aggregate External Finance figure of £173.641m. The expected yield from 

Council Tax is £60.055m. The budget of £233.696m is £0.810m above the Standard 

Spending Assessment of £232.886m – the Welsh Government’s estimate of what is 

needed to provide a ‘standard level of service’.  

Page 104



Budget Summary 2022-23 

7 

 

Denbighshire Revenue Funding 2022 / 2023 

 

The build up for the budget is as follows: 

Area of revenue Percentage 

Welsh Government Settlement 
(AEF) 

52% 

Specific Grants 17% 

Council tax 18% 

Fees / Other 13% 

Budget areas and their financial allocations 

Budget area Financial allocation 

2022 / 2023 Base Budget 216,819,000 

Protection and Inflation 3,801,000 

52%

17%

18%

13% Welsh Government
Settlement (AEF)

Specific Grants

Council tax

Fees / Other

Page 105



Budget Summary 2022-23 

8 

 

Budget area Financial allocation 

Service Pressures 4,677,000 

Schools Budget Increase 4,375,000 

Grants now included within or transferred out of the settlement 275,000 

Investment in priorities and contingencies 2,392,000 

Contingency 1,988,000 

Service-specific savings and efficiencies -634,000 

Net Revenue Budget 2022 / 23 233,693,000 

 

Page 13 shows the summary revenue budget by service for 2021/22 and 2022/23 with the 

following pages giving a more detailed breakdown of each service. 

Balances 

The council has built up general balances of £7.135m at 31st March 2022, as well as a 

prudent level of specific reserves. Due to the better than average financial settlements 

from WG in the last three years the 2022/23 budget has been able to be set without using 

cash reserves. This will be reviewed as part of the ongoing annual budget process. The 

use of cash would have to be recovered over future years but can and has been used to 

smooth the impact of funding reductions in a planned way. 

Council Tax 

This year elected members agreed a Council Tax increase of 2.95%. Council Tax payable 

for each property band for services provided by Denbighshire County Council is detailed 

below: 

Page 106



Budget Summary 2022-23 

9 

 

Tax Band 2022/23 2021/22 

A 986.11 957.84 

B 1,150.46 1,117.48 

C 1,314.81 1,277.12 

D 1,479.16 1,436.76 

E 1,807.86 1,756.03 

F 2,136.56 2,075.31 

G 2,465.27 2,394.59 

H 2,958.32 2,873.51 

I 3,451.37 3,352.43 

Capital Plan 2022/23 

The Council has to account for its investment in its fixed assets separately from the day to 

day running of the organisation. Capital projects will buy, repair, refurbish and develop 

assets so they can continue to be used in the future. 

The Welsh Government’s Capital Settlement for 2022/23 has seen a decrease of 15.45% 

(£0.933m) compared to 2021/22. This continues the poor capital settlements provided by 

the Welsh Government over the past ten years.  

The Final Settlement showed a decrease in capital funding of £0.933m to £5.103m. This 

increase in specific Grant Funding needs to be seen in the context of year-on year 

reductions in capital investment from the Welsh Government meaning that the Council still 

has to continue to rely on its own resources to invest in key projects and local priorities. 

This means earmarking resources to generate cash, using prudential borrowing or even 

selling assets to generate receipts.  

Each year the Council produces a 3 year capital plan that details where it is likely to spend 

its funds. Every bid for capital resources is reviewed by the Strategic Investment Group (a 

group made up of elected members and senior officers) before being considered for 

inclusion in the Capital Plan. The Capital Plan for 2021/22 to 2024/25 was agreed by 

Council at its meeting on 23 February 2022. The Capital Plan summary is shown on page 

23-24, together with a breakdown by service on page 25-33. 

Page 107



Budget Summary 2022-23 

10 

 

Housing Stock 

The Council has two roles in housing. The first is a statutory role to address homelessness 

in the County. The second is as the landlord of the Council’s housing stock of 

approximately 3,378 dwellings.  While the homelessness budget is included in the 

Council’s general revenue budget, the housing stock has to be accounted for separately. 

The budget for the housing stock is held in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). By law 

this must be kept completely separate from other services. Council Tax cannot be used to 

fund any HRA expenditure nor can housing rents be used for anything other than housing 

services.  The 2022/23 HRA Budget was approved by Cabinet on 18 January 2022. It is 

estimated it will spend £17.585m, funded by housing rents of £16.862m other income of 

£0.719m and the use of general balances of £0.004m. The housing capital plan for 

2022/23 totals £22.823m to be spent on improving the housing stock, investment in 

acquisitions and new builds and other improvements. 

The current Housing Stock Business Plan assumes a balance of £1m is maintained over 

the mid-term to mitigate against any future risks. This level of retained balance equates to 

5.7% of the annual revenue turnover and is deemed prudent and sensible in the current 

economic climate, allowing some scope in the event of any unforeseen circumstance 

arising over the short to mid-term of the Plan. Maintaining the balance at a manageable 

level reduces the need to extend the current level of borrowing with the resultant savings 

in annual capital financing costs. This strategy also allows for further scope in future years 

of the Plan to extend the borrowing requirement if needed. 

The Council achieved the Welsh Housing Quality Standard to all the Housing Stock in 

September 2014. Capital spend has been included in the HSBP which ensures sufficient 

resources are available to continue to maintain this standard over the 30 year plan. The 

stock condition survey has identified repairs, maintenance and improvement costs for the 

next 30 years which have subsequently been built into the business plan. 

A summary of the Housing Revenue Account is included in this Budget Book.  

Page 108



Budget Summary 2022-23 

11 

 

Conclusion 

The aim of the budget process is to ensure that the council delivers a balanced budget. 

The uncertainty over the level of financial settlements in recent years has made financial 

planning in already difficult circumstances even more challenging. 

Although recent increases in the funding received from Welsh Government is welcome, 

the settlement fail to keep pace with the pressures facing local authorities in Wales and 

therefore are effectively a reduction in funding in real terms. Schools and social care 

represent the most significant elements of the council’s budget and the cost of these is 

growing beyond the resources available. Pressures are also growing in other areas. While 

the council will always endeavour to be more efficient to save money it is no longer 

possible to address the funding gap through efficiency savings alone and a careful 

balance between service savings and local taxation has to be struck.  The current Medium 

Term Financial Plan extract shows a saving requirement of over £2.2m in 2023 and £2.6m 

the following year. This will have a significant impact on the future shape of the council 

and the services it delivers. 

It is likely that future local government funding settlements will fail to keep pace with 

inflationary pressures which results in a real terms reduction in funding. Whilst there is 

uncertainty about the precise levels of reduction each year, it is inevitable that some hard 

decisions will have to be taken to ensure the Council lives within its means and continues 

to deliver its priorities. However, the Council's record of delivery in identifying and 

achieving savings while managing reserves and balances carefully results in a high 

degree of confidence that the Council will continue to deliver effective services while 

providing some investment in Council Priorities during this challenging period.  

There will be no general Covid Hardship Fund in 2022/23 and the overall settlement 

recognised the ongoing impact of the pandemic on services which the council will need to 

manage. It is anticipated that Welsh Government specific financial support towards 

additional costs in respect of the pandemic will continue for the following: 

Page 109



Budget Summary 2022-23 

12 

 

 Self-Isolation Payments – 30th June 2022 

 Statutory Sick Pay enhancement – 30th June 2022 

 Free School Meal Payments – end of the summer 2022 school holiday 

A 3/5 Year Budget Process and Medium Term Financial Plan was agreed last year to help 

ensure that the Council is in the best shape possible to meet the challenge. The process is 

reviewed and refined on an annual basis and the key aspects and aims of the Budget 

Process for 2023/24 and beyond include: 

 Capture service based budget pressures (under £100k) 

 Identify key strategic budget pressures (over £100k) 

 Identification of Service Efficiency Targets 

 5 year Savings Plan – concentration on key projects identified during the budget 

process last year 

 Invest to Save Fund to help pump prime efficiency projects 

 Communications and Engagement Plan 

The co-operation and hard work of officers and members in preparing the budget is 

gratefully acknowledged.  

 

Steve Gadd 

Head of Finance and Property (Section 151 Officer)  

Page 110



Budget Summary 2022-23 

13 

 

Department 2022/23 2021/22 

Communities and Customers 3,437,138 3,463,095 

Education and Children’s Services 18,540,391 17,933,811 

Schools 81,649,262 76,606,793 

Business Improvement and Modernisation 5,140,884 4,659,570 

Legal, HR & democratic services 2,520,069 2,418,199 

Finance and Property 5,961,538 4,757,416 

Highways & Environmental Services 16,510,509 16,185,781 

Planning & Public Protection 10,271,734 9,805,245 

Community Support Services 43,299,858 40,012,650 

ADM - Leisure Residual Budgets 3,273,174 3,408,749 

Total services 190,604,557 179,251,309 

Corporate & miscellaneous 21,754,655 16,991,951 

Precepts & levies 5,381,432 5,060,195 

Capital financing 15,955,545 15,514,545 

Total council budget 233,696,189 216,818,000 

 

Communities and Customers 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Management and support 138,323 139,152 

Working Denbighshire 162,549 163,940 

Destination Marketing & Communication   

Corporate Communication 406,882 362,434 

Llangollen International Eisteddfod 1,000 16,143 

Tourism 243,053 246,552 

Public Engagement 168 23,000 

Total Destination Marketing & Communications 651,103 648,129 

Libraries & One Stop Shops   

Libraries 1,169,876 1,172,721 

Home Library Service 24,862 24,853 

Bibliography 20,939 20,939 

Y Capel 36,783 35,603 

One stop shops 733,084 742,172 

Total Libraries & One Stop Shops 1,985,544 1,996,288 

Appendix 1: Departmental Budget Summaries 

Summary Council Revenue Budget 

 

Page 111



Budget Summary 2022-23 

14 

 

Youth Service 
499,619 515,586 

Total Customers, Communication and Marketing 
3,437,138 3,463,095 

 

Education and Children’s Services 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Education   

Management & support 380,282 380,931 

Core Staffing Team 268,432 271,496 

Asset Management 166,032 165,821 

Business Support  232,724 233,600 

Modernising Education 72,400 73,658 

Governor Support 2,383 2,763 

School Reorganisation Costs 144,146 159,146 

ALN & Inclusion 2,700,944 2,670,038 

Recoupment & OCC -186,405 -186,405 

SI & I Grants 386,626 386,626 

School Improvement 1,561,659 1,557,948 

Total Education 5,729,223 5,715,622 

Children's Services   

Family Support Services 1,015,296 1,015,705 

Looked after Children Services 7,451,709 6,701,709 

Other Children's Services 450,781 475,519 

Safeguarding & Reviewing 415,636 417,599 

Service Strategy 3,183,718 3,314,033 

Youth Offending 294,028 293,624 

Total Children's Services 12,811,168 12,218,189 

Total Education and Children's Services 18,540,391 17,933,811 

 

Schools 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Page 112



Budget Summary 2022-23 

15 

 

Schools - Delegated 85,855,102 81,504,377 

Schools – Non delegated   

Primary -1,693,215 -2,724,106 

Secondary -2,517,017 -2,180,760 

Special schools 4392 7282 

Total Schools – Non delegated -4,205,840 -4,897,584 

Total schools 81,649,262 76,606,793 

 

Business Improvement and Modernisation  

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Business Improvement and Modernisation   

Information Management 338,638 338,731 

BIM Management Team 344,678 384,325 

Strategic Planning 321,101 321,563 

Corporate Programme Office 47,317 104,364 

Audit 198,918 199,182 

Community Safety 32,701 32,578 

Climate and Ecological Change 832,052 392,573 

Total Business Improvement and Modernisation 2,115,405 1,773,316 

ICT   

Business Transformation and ICT management 2,403,947 2,263,915 

Service Delivery Support 601,532 601,532 

ICT Projects 20,000 20,807 

Total ICT 3,025,479 2,886,254 

Total Business Improvement and Modernisation 5,140,884 4,659,570 

 

Legal, HR & Democratic Services 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Legal and Democratic   

Management & Support 161,388 161,963 

Page 113



Budget Summary 2022-23 

16 

 

Administration 481,140 408,340 

County Solicitors 619,813 623,215 

Civics 4,950 5,050 

Translation 150,000 150,000 

Procurement 226,958 226,683 

Registrar – births/deaths/mar -32,847 -27,980 

Registration of electors 119,983 119,926 

Total legal & democratic services 1,731,385 1,667,197 

Strategic Human Resources   

Management & Support -125,189 -125,189 

Training 45,157 45,133 

Occupational Health -14,699 -14,771 

Employee Resources & Relations 883,415 845,829 

Total strategic human resources 788,684 751,002 

Total Legal, HR & Democratic Services 2,520,069 2,418,199 

 

Finance and Property 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Corporate Finance   

Treasurer & support 197,753 148,181 

Accounts 1,184,547 1,153,377 

Exchequer 366,929 383,988 

Total Corporate Finance 1,749,229 1,685,546 

Revenues & Benefits   

Revenues 1,518,649 1,518,649 

Cost of Collection -281,981 -281,981 

Total Revenues & Benefits 1,236,668 1,236,668 

Property and Asset Management   

Asset Management 197,348 109,160 

Community Buildings 147 -7,422 

Office Accommodation 1,140,754 1,058,630 

School Facilities Management 2,454 2,369 

Reception 38,796 38,693 

Page 114



Budget Summary 2022-23 

17 

 

Building Compliance 50,004 100,648 

Development and Investments 45,062 47,014 

Corporate Health and Safety 180,321 183,768 

Strategic Assets Manager 76,498 77,194 

Valuation and Estates -404,647 -408,633 

Management and Support 222,584 230,586 

Facilities Maintenance 1,241,844 219,036 

Design and Construction 13,548 13,231 

Property Health and Safety 170,928 170,928 

Total Property and Asset Management 2,975,641 1,835,202 

Total Finance and Property 5,961,538 4,757,416 

 

Highways & Environmental Services 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Service Management   

Management 446,741 446,966 

Stores 59,148 59,149 

Depots 204,968 161,738 

Total Service Management 710,857 667,853 

Strategic Highways   

Coast 251,562 242,231 

Bridges and Structures 347,475 347,550 

Emergency Planning 87,791 87,791 

Flood Risk Management 36,211 36,888 

Highways Asset Management 2,244,735 2,104,948 

Rights of Way 257,923 257,908 

Street Works -155,526 -147,554 

Total Strategic Highways 3,070,171 2,929,762 

Streetscene   

Management & Administration -176,622 -295,236 

Streetscene North 2,001,686 2,002,241 

Streetscene South 890,738 890,610 

Winter Maintenance 676,431 676,431 

Total Streetscene 3,392,233 3,274,046 

Page 115



Budget Summary 2022-23 

18 

 

Service Improvement and Fleet   

Fleet -66465 -46105 

Quality and Performance 233,268 234,601 

Total waste & fleet 166,803 188,496 

Works Unit   

Major Projects Group -83,194 -83,085 

Street Lighting 1,090,865 1,038,204 

Total Works Unit 1,007,671 955,119 

Catering, Cleaning and Public Conveniences   

Building Cleaning 260,275 295,231 

Catering 778,188 867,920 

Public Conveniences 257,655 252,373 

Total Facilities 1,296,118 1,415,524 

Waste Services   

Refuse Collection 921,115 931,030 

Waste Disposal 1,805,012 1,805,742 

Recycling 2,171,678 2,126,448 

Transfer Stations -162,477 -161,327 

Trade Waste -20,127 -20,127 

Garden Waste Service 206,399 224,093 

Waste Management and Administration 776,547 796,578 

Kerbside Collection (Co-mingled) 6,153 0 

Food Waste 1,115,404 1,005,492 

Trade Recycling -31,192 -31,084 

Bulkies and Deliveries 78,144 78,136 

Total Waste Services 6,866,656 6,754,981 

Total Highways and Environmental Services 16,510,509 16,185,781 

 

Planning & Public Protection 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Countryside, Culture and Heritage   

Countryside 894,256 801,609 

Heritage 316,704 377,388 

Page 116



Budget Summary 2022-23 

19 

 

Total Countryside, Culture and Heritage 1,210,960 1,178,997 

Traffic & Parking   

Traffic & Parking Management 116,092 116,475 

Parking Services -831,070 -798,105 

Highways Development Control 48,135 48,918 

Road Safety 317,988 317,140 

Traffic Management 185,399 187,911 

Total Traffic & Parking -163,456 -127,661 

Transport   

Public Transport 525,678 525,511 

School Transport 6,304,332 5,804,009 

Total Transport 6,830,010 6,329,520 

Economic & Business Development 314,084 341,963 

Planning   

Housing Strategy 61,993 62,160 

Housing Renewals 21,639 24,639 

Management & Support 262,076 262,109 

Development Plan & Policy 248,446 239,115 

Conservation & Implementation 69,102 69,943 

Development Control 73,974 94,225 

Building Control 89,325 87,949 

Land Charges -21,565 -21,465 

Total Planning 804,990 818,675 

Public Protection    

Management and Support 200,579 202,499 

Food Safety 222,077 224,630 

Community Enforcement 83,145 63,788 

Health & Safety – Enforcement 101,406 101,556 

Public Health 210,245 210,133 

Licensing -44,711 -44,506 

Trading Standards 246,606 247,167 

Housing Enforcement 269,810 272,064 

Parking Enforcement -14,011 -13,580 

Total Public Protection 1,275,146 1,263,751 

Total Planning & Public Protection 10,271,734 9,805,245 

Page 117



Budget Summary 2022-23 

20 

 

Community Support Services   

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Community and Business Services   

WD & administration 767,519 768,840 

Court of Protection 1,587 1,549 

Customer Connections 109,994 110,079 

Homelessness Prevention 775,729 775,963 

Telecare Stores 257,400 257,661 

Total Community and Business Support 1,912,229 1,914,092 

Client Services   

Contract and Commissioning 829,625 832,462 

Work Opportunities 652,869 651,322 

Provider 2,293,649 2,227,235 

Voluntary Organisations and Grants 383,919 383,919 

Reablement 1,200,535 1,202,796 

Supported Independent Living  0 -28 

Carers 399,584 399,984 

Total Client Services 5,760,181 5,697,690 

Localities   

Edge or Care 158 249 

Locality North 9,849,231 9,864,129 

Locality South 5,954,305 5,971,433 

Single Point Of Access 94,735 94,674 

Step Down and Reviewing 237,941 241,668 

Talking Point 1,192 2,183 

Total Localities 16,137,562 16,174,336 

Specialist services   

Mental health 2,799,889 2,807,728 

Complex Disabilities 10,084,673 10,088,562 

Safeguard, Substance Misuse 938,655 959,162 

Total specialist services 13,823,217 13,855,452 

Cefndy healthcare 0 -5,500 

Adult Central Services   

Adult services 5,658,113 2,366,524 

ICF – Integrated Care Fund 8,556 10,056 

Page 118



Budget Summary 2022-23 

21 

 

Total Adult Central Services 5,666,669 2,376,580 

Total Community Support Services 43,299,858 40,012,650 

 

ADM - Leisure Residual Budgets 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Premises 17,019 152,594 

Management Fee 1,522,583 1,522,583 

Service Level Agreements 298,660 298,660 

Prudential Borrowing 1,434,912 1,434,912 

Total ADM - Leisure Residual Budgets 3,273,174 3,408,749 

 

Corporate & Miscellaneous 

  

Service Area 2022/23 2021/22 

Council Tax Benefits 10,811,200 10,922,939 

Corporate Budgets   

Contingency 236,632 597,888 

Economic Development and Regeneration 685,152 385,152 

Chief Executive – Secretariat 177,184 181,594 

Unison 24,184 27,061 

Coroners 180,066 180,162 

Corporate Directors 271,487 272,293 

Members 1,184,574 1,022,676 

Elections 26,660 26,660 

Corporate Emergency Planning 1,500 1,500 

Corporate Subscriptions and Audit Fees 545,700 545,700 

Corporate Investment and Inflation (eg contingencies held 
centrally until required by services such as NNDR, 
Energy, Pay) 

4,412,587 1,663,552 

Centrally held budgets - (eg historic pension costs) 3,197,729 1,164,774 

Page 119



Budget Summary 2022-23 

22 

 

Total Corporate Budgets 10,943,455 6,069,012 

Total Corporate & Miscellaneous 21,754,655 16,991,951 

Page 120



23 

 

Appendix 2: Denbighshire county council capital plan 2021/22 – 2024/25 

General Capital Plan 

Budget 2021/22 
Original 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Latest 

Estimate 

2022/23 
Latest 

Estimate 

2023/24 
Latest 

Estimate 

2024/25 
Latest 

Estimate 
Capital expenditure      

Total est. payments – other 24,699 25,553 23,771 100 350 

Total est. payments – major projects      

Housing improving grants 1,200 1,575 1,200   

Rhyl, new 3-16 catholic school 366 391    

Ysgol Llanfair, new school  75    

Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, new school  61    

Highways Maintenance 2,960 3,830 4,710   

East Rhyl coastal defence scheme 8,150 5,250 3,575   

Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark  44    

Rhyl Queen's Market Redevelopment 3,128 2,282 3,493 121 121 

Waste Service Remodelling 13,472 2,103 11,428   

Contingency 500 0 500 500 500 

Total 54,475 41,164 48,677 721 971 

P
age 121



Budget Summary 2022-23 

24 

 

Budget 2021/22 
Original 

Estimate 

2021/22 
Latest 

Estimate 

2022/23 
Latest 

Estimate 

2023/24 
Latest 

Estimate 

2024/25 
Latest 

Estimate 
Capital financing      

External funding 28,332 22,973 19,399 6,036 6,036 

Receipts & reserves 6,610 8,812 7,944 121  

Prudential borrowing 19,533 9,379 21,334 100 350 

Unallocated funding 0 0 0 -5,536 -5,536 

Total capital financing  54,475 41,164 48,677 721 850 

  

P
age 122



Budget Summary 2022-23 

25 

 

Capital plan services 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

Capital programme summary      

Legal, HR and democratic services 218 0 0 0 

Finance and Property 6,101 7,673 121 0 

Planning and Public Protection 4,593 1,524 0 0 

Business Improvememnt and Modernisation 777 241 100 350 

Community Support Services 1,427 5,333 0 0 

Highways and Environmental Services 20,312 21,561 0 0 

Education and Children Services 7,736 11,845 0 0 

Contingency 0 500 500 500 

Total Service Summary 41,164 48,677 721 850 

P
age 123



Budget Summary 2022-23 

26 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

Legal, HR and Democratic Services     

Relocation of Coroners Accommodation, County Hall, Ruthin 81    

Relocation of Registration Service to County Hall, Ruthin 137    

Total Legal, HR and Democratic Services 218 0 0 0 

Finance and Property     

Agricultural Estates 58 173   

Asbestos 266 400   

Equalties  11 70   

Property, Capital Maintenance Works  - Block Allocation  799 2,199   

Fire Risk Assessment Works - Public Buildings  81 160   

Reduction in Carbon Emmissions from Council Assets  69    

Demolition of building on former Rhos Street/Ysgol Penbarras school site 68    

County Hall Improved Utilisation - Upgraded Building Management System 10    

County Hall Improved Utilisation - Relocation of Y Bont 62 8   

Corwen Pavilion Development 4 15   

Gypsy and Traveller Site Accommodation - feasibility  20   

P
age 124



Budget Summary 2022-23 

27 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

Rhyl Waterfront Development - retentions 44    

Rhyl, Queen's Building Redevelopment 2,282 3,493 121  

West Rhyl Housing Improvement Programme 152    

Former Costigans Building , Rhyl - Tech Hub (Retentions) 22    

West Rhyl Regenration Area Ph 2 (3-23 Edward Henry Street) 932    

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure - Public Charging Points 55 100   

Energy Efficiency/Reduction at Ysgol Dinas Bran 249    

Energy Efficiency/Reduction at Pavilion Theatre, Rhyl 90 320   

Energy Efficiency/Reduction at County Hall, Ruthin 204 300   

Corporate Fleet Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 492 400   

Land acquisition at Glan Elwy 111    

Rhyl Leisure Centre - All Weather Pitch Replacement 9 15   

Rhyl Pavilion Theatre - Refurbishment 17    

Corwen Leisure Centre - Pool Hall & Changing Rooms Refurbishment 14    

Total Finance and Property 6,101 7,673 121 0 

 
 

    

P
age 125



Budget Summary 2022-23 

28 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services 

Housing Improvement Grants 1,575 1,200   

Renewals - Town Centre Development Fund 132    

Housing Renewal Theme Project 63    

Enable - 2020-21 13    

27 - 29 High Street, Denbigh - Targeted Regeneration Investment grant to third 
party 

250    

Town Centres Covid Response - Grant Assistance 108    

Traffic  and Car Parks 711 324   

Safer Routes in Communities 60    

Local Transport Fund  360    

Active Travel Fund 910    

Local Sustainable Transport - Covid Response 108    

Local Road Safety  71    

Woodland Creation on land owned by the Council 202    

Greengates - Tree Nursery 30    

Total Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services 4,593 1,524 0 0 

P
age 126



Budget Summary 2022-23 

29 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

 
 
Business Improvement and Modernisation 
 

    

ICT Strategy Phase 2 700 241 100 350 

Green Recovery Initiative - WLGA Grant 20-21 74    

Business Development Grants (Final Payment) 3    

Total Business Improvement and Modernisation 777 241 100 350 

 
Community Support Services 

    

Minor Adaptations, Community Equipment and Telecare  394 240   

Integrated Care Fund - Various Initiatives 97    

Adaptation of 17 Middle Land, Denbigh  165    

Acquisition of Accommodation  - Llys Awelon, Ruthin 430    

Llys Awelon Extra Care Development Ph 2  4,993   

Corwen Health, Social Care and Housing - Feasibility 101 100   

Denbigh Health and Social Care - Feasibility 25    

Acquisition of Extra Care Unit at Awel y Dyffryn, Middle Lane, Denbigh 215    

P
age 127



Budget Summary 2022-23 

30 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

Total Community Support Services 1,427 5,333 0 0 

 
Highways, Facilities and  Environmental Services 

    

Highways Maintenance 2,437 4,710   

Highways Maintenance - Capital Displacement 528    

Public Highways Refurbishment Grant 18-19 to 21-22 943    

Bridges 1,397 403   

Rights of Way 134    

Rights of Way - Access Improvement Grant 78    

Rhyl Harbour/Marine Lake - Works to revetments 20    

Recovery from February 2020 Flooding 53    

Street Lighting 41    

Street Lighting - Sustainable LED Lighting (Salix) 185    

Coastal Defence - Inspections and Essential Maintenance 330    

Prestatyn Coastal Defence - Outline Business Case 1,125    

Prestatyn Coastal Defence - Repairs to Open Stone Asphalt Revetment 2 4    

Rhyl Central Coastal Defence - Outline Business Case 2,198    

P
age 128



Budget Summary 2022-23 

31 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme 5,250 3,575   

Flood Prevention Scheme - General 285    

Natural Flood Management in Denbighshire 1,000    

Urban Catchment Management in Prestatyn 130    

Urban Catchment Management in Rhyl 110    

Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 1,000    

Electric Taxis Green Fleet Pilot  285    

Botanical Gardens,Rhyl - New Accommodation 245 445   

New Central Waste Depot, Denbigh 59 1,000   

Remodelling Waste Service 2,103 11,428   

All Wales Play Accessibility 9    

Rhyl Green Infrastructure - Transforming Towns Funding 251    

HRC Re-Use Shop, Rhyl 58    

Denbighshire's Circular Economy 'Social Supermarket' 44    

Denbighshire Textile Repair and Reuse Partnership 10    

Total Highways, Facilities  and Environmental Services 20,312 21,561 0 0 

P
age 129



Budget Summary 2022-23 

32 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

 
Education and Children's Services 

    

Schools Capital Maintenance Block Allocation  3,493 7,505   

Schools Maintenance Grant - Welsh Government 2021-22 1,799    

School Workplace Transport 100 856   

Equalities 45 59   

Ysgol Tir Morfa - Outdoor Play Area Improvements 10 82   

Ysgol Emmanuel - Entrance Improvements 83 100   

Welsh Language Centre at Ysgol Glan Clwyd, St Asaph (Retention) 23    

Oaktree Centre - Expansion of 'Little Acorns' - WG Childcare Grant 331 817   

Ysgol Twm o'r Nant - Relocate Cylch Bodawen to Ysgol Twm o'r Nant - WG 
Childcare Grant 

40 750   

Ysgol Dewi Sant - Relocation of 2 cylch groups - WG Childcare Grant 66 1,072   

Ysgol Penmorfa, Extension to Flying Start Accommodation 394    

21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - New Area School (Final Retention) 33    

21c Schools Band A - Rhos Street and Ysgol Penbarras - Additional school yard 164    

21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Llanfair - New School (Final Retention) 75    

21c Schools Band A - Ysgol Carreg Emlyn - New School (Final Retention) 61    

P
age 130



Budget Summary 2022-23 

33 

 

Budget 2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

2024/25 
£000 

21c Schools Band A - Rhyl, Christ the Word - New School  391    

21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Bryn Collen/Gwernant 99    

21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Pendref 122    

21c Schools Band B - Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn 371    

Rhyl Youth Centre - Refurbishment Works 36 100   

Ysgol y Castell, Rhyl - Classroom Extension  504   

Total Education and Children's Services 7,736 11,845 0 0 

 
Contingency 

  
500 

 
500 

 
500 

Total Capital Plan Services 41,164 48,677 721 850 

P
age 131



34 

 

Appendix 3: Housing Revenue Account & Housing Capital Plan 

Introduction 

At its meeting on 18 January 2022, Cabinet adopted the revenue budget and capital plan 

for the Housing Revenue Account. By adopting the budget, rent increases for dwellings 

and garages were agreed in accordance with rent setting policy with effect from Monday 4 

April 2022.  

Housing Revenue Budget 

The 2022/23 HRA budget adopted by Cabinet is shown in the next page. The budget has 

been calculated to ensure we can deliver our revenue services, the capital investment 

programme to maintain the quality standard of our homes and develop our new build 

programme. 

We are anticipating significant additional costs in future years due to expected new 

decarbonisation standards for our existing stock. All social landlords in Wales are 

anticipating additional funding from WG to support this. In addition, Local Authorities are 

now able to bid for Social Housing Grant (SHG) for new build programmes. Our current 

programme of 170 additional homes has been incorporated within the HSBP.  

Welsh Government Rent Policy 

Welsh Government developed a policy for social housing rents that will be applied 

consistently by all social landlords and reflect the type; size; location and quality of the 

Landlord’s properties.  

In December 2019 the Welsh Government announced a five year rent policy. The policy 

agrees an annual rent uplift to CPI +1% from 2020/21 to 2024/25 using CPI from the 

previous September but with Ministerial discretion if CPI exceeds 3%. For 2022/23, this 

has been agreed to be 3.1% CPI only. 

This means that: 

 The overall total increase across all stock is 3.1%. 

Page 132



Budget Summary 2022-23 

35 

 

 The average weekly rent will be £97.27 

 The average weekly rent increase will be £2.92 

As part of the WG rent policy the council will be required to ensure that any rent increase 

considers affordability for tenants, value for money and an assessment of cost efficiencies. 

Information on this is attached in appendix 3. 

Whilst 2021 has been a difficult year for household finances and this will continue into 

2022, we are satisfied that affordability of our weekly rents is reasonable. The increase is 

eligible for welfare benefit housing costs support of which 72% of tenancies are in receipt 

of. We have to keep pace with cost inflation and maintain our ability to invest in our 

housing stock, consider well managed growth through our new build programme and 

importantly provide services to support our households effectively. 

Housing Capital Plan 

As part of the budget process it is necessary to review the Housing Stock Business Plan 

and this is achieved through a due diligence exercise on an on-going basis to review the 

assumptions used and to validate the robustness of the financial model. In addition, the 

review undertakes a sensitivity analysis. 

The current Housing Stock Business Plan assumes a minimum balance of £1m is 

maintained over the mid-term to mitigate against any future risks.  

The HSBP maintains borrowing to fund capital works such as the new build and 

improvement programmes. The level of borrowing is closely monitored as this is related to 

annual capital financing costs. All council’s in Wales have reached agreement with Welsh 

Government to remove the borrowing cap from HRA’s as per the Deed of Termination of 

HRA Subsidy Voluntary Agreement 20th March 2019. This repealed the previously agreed 

cap introduced by the Housing Act 2014 settlement payment. 

Local Authorities in Wales are still required by Regulation to have regard to the Prudential 

Code when carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

Page 133



Budget Summary 2022-23 

36 

 

Therefore any borrowing undertaken by LHAs following the abolition of the borrowing cap 

will continue to be “unsupported” and any increase is for Local Authorities to manage 

within their existing resources. 

Welsh Government are currently working with councils in Wales with HRA’s, to determine 

and agree appropriate debt levels.

Page 134



37 

 

Housing Revenue Account - Budget 2022/23 

Budget 2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Projected 
Outturn 

(M9) 

2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

Expenditure:    

Supervision & Management – General 2,668,895 2,638,719 2,734,769 

Supervision & Management – Service Charges 544,105 559,633 580,003 

Repairs and Maintenance 4,929,000 5,225,909 5,327,541 

Total Housing Management 8,142,000 8,424,261 8,642,313 

Item 8 capital charges 6,501,000 6,219,000 6,631,000 

Capital funded from revenue 1,871,000 3,469,000 1,831,000 

Capital Funded from Revenue - AHG 0 135,000 135,000 

Provision for bad debts 319,000 345,000 346,000 

Total Expenditure 16,833,000 18,592,261 17,585,313 

Income:    

Rents (net of voids) 16,023,974 15,995,772 16,862,000 

Service charges 399,000 393,304 397,000 

Garages 191,000 176,560 182,000 

Affordable Housing Grant 0 135,000 135,000 

Interest on balances & other income 135,152 9,000 5,000 

Total income 16,749,126 16,709,636 17,581,000 

Surplus / Deficit (-) for the Year: 
 

   

General Balances 1,787,126 1,721,375 1,826,687 

Balance as at start of year ~ General 2,756,568 2,756,568 1,008,944 

Earmarked Balances -1,871,000 -3,469,000 -1,831,000 

FRS Adjustment 0 0 0 

Balance as at end of year ~ General 2,672,694 1,008,944 1,004,630 

 

Page 135



38 

 

Summary 

 

Area 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Capital Expenditure      

WHQS Improvements & 
Maintenance 

9,501,000  9,228,000  6,669,000  6,809,000  8,522,000  

New build 13,596,000  12,310,000  4,549,000  6,525,000  0  

Acquisition of existing 
properties 

500,000  500,000  500,000  0  0  

Other Improvements 851,000  785,000  415,000  421,000  428,000  

Total 24,448,000  22,823,000  12,133,000  13,755,000  8,950,000  

 
Capital Funding 

     

Major Repairs Allowance 2,381,000  2,381,000  2,381,000  2,381,000  2,381,000  

Capital Receipts 2,300,000  1,270,000  920,000  0  0  

Borrowing 11,996,000  15,231,000  6,233,000  9,391,000  5,532,000  

Other Funding Sources 4,302,000  1,975,000  1,124,000  524,000  0  

Capital Expenditure funded 
by HRA 

3,469,000  1,966,000  1,475,000  1,459,000  1,037,000  

Total 24,448,000  22,823,000  12,133,000  13,755,000  8,950,000  

 
Revenue expenditure 

     

Management 3,198,000  3,315,000  3,432,000  3,536,000  3,629,000  

Repairs & Maintenance 5,226,000  5,328,000  5,508,000  5,674,000  5,828,000  

Interest 3,030,000  3,464,000  3,766,000  3,918,000  4,034,000  

Capital Financing Charge 3,189,000  3,167,000  3,766,000  4,526,000  4,817,000  

Total 14,643,000  15,274,000  16,472,000  17,654,000  18,308,000  

 
Revenue Income 

     

Gross Rental Income 16,312,000  17,194,000  17,910,000  19,094,000  19,319,000  

Garages  177,000  182,000  187,000  193,000  199,000  

Service Charges 393,000  397,000  401,000  405,000  409,000  

Voids  -316,000  -332,000  -345,000  -367,000  -371,000  

Bad Debts -345,000  -346,000  -348,000  -351,000  -351,000  

Affordable Housing Grant 135,000  135,000  135,000  135,000  135,000  

Interest on Balances 9,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  

Total 16,365,000  17,235,000  17,946,000  19,114,000  19,345,000  

 
Balances 

     

Surplus / Deficit (-) For Year 1,722,000  1,962,000  1,474,000  1,460,000  1,037,000  

Cap Exp funded by HRA 3,469,000  1,966,000  1,475,000 1,459,000  1,037,000  

Balance Brought Forward 2,757,000  1,010,000  1,006,000  1,006,000  1,004,000  

Surplus / - Deficit after 
CERA 

-1,747,000  -4,000  -1,000  1,000  -0  

Balance carried forward 1,010,000  1,006,000  1,004,000  1,007,000  1,004,000  

Page 136



Appendix 2

Net Budget

Jun-22 2021/22 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Communities and Customers 3,263 4,285 -828 3,457 5,237 -1,780 3,457 952 -952 0 0.00%
Education and Children's Service 17,802 34,257 -15,737 18,520 24,944 -5,336 19,608 -9,313 10,401 1,088 5.87%
Business Improvement and Modernisation 4,593 6,262 -1,121 5,141 5,809 -678 5,131 -453 443 -10 -0.19%
Legal, HR and Democratic Services 2,364 4,152 -1,632 2,520 4,048 -1,543 2,505 -104 89 -15 -0.60%
Finance and Property 5,744 10,466 -4,578 5,888 8,968 -3,090 5,878 -1,498 1,488 -10 -0.17%
Highways and Environmental Services 15,730 30,938 -14,343 16,595 19,811 -3,199 16,612 -11,127 11,144 17 0.10%
Planning and Public Protection 9,562 17,484 -7,201 10,283 13,936 -3,616 10,320 -3,548 3,585 37 0.36%
Community Support Services 39,854 62,364 -19,065 43,299 62,744 -19,445 43,299 380 -380 0 0.00%
Leisure - Retained Budgets 3,255 3,273 0 3,273 3,275 0 3,275 2 0 2 0.06%
Total Services 102,167 173,481 -64,505 108,976 148,772 -38,687 110,085 -24,709 25,818 1,109 1.02%

Corporate 18,474 51,002 -29,271 21,731 51,002 -29,271 21,731 0 0 0 0.00%
Precepts & Levies 5,060 5,381 0 5,381 5,381 0 5,381 0 0 0 0.00%
Capital Financing 15,176 15,955 0 15,955 15,955 0 15,955 0 0 0 0.00%
Total Corporate 38,710 72,338 -29,271 43,067 72,338 -29,271 43,067 0 0 0 0.00%

Council Services & Corporate Budget 140,877 245,819 -93,776 152,043 221,110 -67,958 153,152 -24,709 25,818 1,109 0.73%

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 75,941 88,012 -6,362 81,650 87,935 -6,394 81,541 -77 -32 -109 -0.13%

Total Council Budget 216,818 333,831 -100,138 233,693 309,045 -74,352 234,693 -24,786 25,786 1,000 0.43%

Housing Revenue Account 653 17,585 -17,581 4 17,585 -17,581 4 0 0 0

Budget 2022/23 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23

P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Service Variance Narrative

Service

Variance 
This 

Month
£000

Description

Communities and Customers 0 Underspend due to a vacancy savings.

Education and Children's Service 1,088 See body of report for details

Business Improvement and Modernisation -10 Underspend due to a vacancy savings.

Legal, HR and Democratic Services -15 Underspend due to a number of temporary vacancy savings.

Finance and Property -10 The underspend relates to the net impact of temporary vacancy savings due to a number of retirements within finance.

Highways, Facilities and Environmental 
Services

17
The small reported overspendis due to a number of minor variances. A review of the budgeted arrangements within the Streetscene is currently 
ongoing to help streamline processes (eg removal of timesheets to help free up officer time). Waste service in particular relies on grant income 
which have yet to be confirmed by Weksh Government so remain a risk.

Planning and Public Protection 37

The reported pressure related to planning income which, although has recovered over recent months, is still below pre-pandemic levels. This will be 
monitroed clsoely over coming months. Risks remain around School Transport however following the approval of a £0.500m pressure as part of teh 
22/23 budget process it is hoped that this area will remain in a break even position. As always teh true picture will not be known until the Autumn 
term contracts have been agreed.

Community Support Services 0 See body of report for details

Leisure - ADM 2 The movement relates to minor variances.

Corporate & Miscellaneous 0 See body of report for details

Precepts & Levies 0 There are no risks in this area

Capital Financing 0 The position on capital financing is very much related to progress on capital projects and variances do not crystallise until the final outturn is known.

Council Services & Corporate Budget 1,109

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25 APPENDIX  4
Position to end May 2022

2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

OUTTURN ORIGINAL LATEST LATEST LATEST

POSITION ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure
Total Estimated Payments  - Other 18,557 23,771 37,724 100 350

Total Estimated Payments - Major Projects:

Housing Improvement Grants 1,210 1,200 1,565
Rhyl, New 3-16 Catholic  School 52 339
Highways Maintenance 4,109 4,710 7,516
East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme 5,137 3,575 480
Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment 1,682 3,493 6,403 121
Waste Service Remodelling 4,797 11,428 6,442 8,412

Contingency 500 2,176 500 500
Total 35,544 48,677 62,645 9,133 850

Capital Financing
External Funding 20,482 19,399 33,689 7,437 6,043
Receipts and Reserves 5,223 7,944 15,223 121
Prudential Borrowing  9,839 21,334 13,733 7,118 350

Unallocated Funding 0 0 0 (5,543) (5,543)

Total Capital Financing 35,544 48,677 62,645 9,133 850

Note: 2022-23 Original Estimate is the position as approved by Council on 22nd February 2022

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix 5 - Major Capital Projects Update – May 2022 

 

Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment 

Total Budget £13.232m  

Expenditure to date £7.364m 

Estimated remaining spend in 22/23 £5.747m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.121m 

Funding WG £8.060m DCC Asbestos £0.252m. DCC 
£4.920m 

Narrative: 

The demolition is complete. Additional funding was secured at the February Cabinet, and 
approval to award the construction contract via delegated decision and for Wynne to place 
early orders from the March Cabinet.  

An issue with nesting birds on site has postponed the construction start on site date. 
August is more realistic but the sooner work can start the better so mitigation is being put 
in place to try help this. 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

.  

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 22/23 £6.403m 

Page 143



 
 

Waste Service Remodelling 

Total Budget £22.829m  

Expenditure to date £7.974m 

Estimated remaining spend in 22/23 £6.442m 

Future Years estimated spend £8.413m 

Funding WG £11.132m , DCC £9.052m, Other 
contributions £2.645m 

Narrative: 

A number of work streams are being taken forward including:  

Development of a new single central waste transfer station depot on land adjacent to the 
Colomendy Industrial Estate in Denbigh. The Phase 1 Enabling Works Contract 
commenced on site on July 5th 2021 and completed in April 2022. Tenders for Phase 2 
works have been returned, evaluated and we are aiming to award a contract before the 
end of June in order to complete the development of the new Depot by summer 2023 to 
support a subsequent roll out of the proposed new service model in autumn 2023.  

Specification of the new fleet required to support the new model has been completed 
following a number of trials / tests and routing of the new rounds with a tender for the new 
fleet with the longest lead in times issued in December 2021 which was returned in late 
January 2022. A report was taken to Cabinet in April 2022 to enable award of contract for 
the 5 metre vehicles required. Further procurement of the smaller sized vehicles required 
has also be taken forward in the first half of 2022.  

An Options Appraisal exercise on the detail of the new recycling container design has 
been undertaken, with the new service model and supporting Containers presented to 
Scrutiny in May 2021 and presented again at Scrutiny in December 2021. A procurement 
exercise for the Containers to support the new model will be undertaken in due course 
with a delivery schedule in time for roll out associated with proposed service change. A 
number of mobilisation and communication activities are ongoing to prepare for the 
service change and include developing the new collection routes; planning for any staffing 
changes/requirements and ongoing engagement and communication with stakeholders 
and residents.  

 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 22/23 £6.442m 

  

Page 144



Appendix 6 – Business Rates Write Off Details 
 

The first case relates Gorsefield Holdings Ltd, which traded in a Factory at Unit 10a Colomendy 
Industrial Phase 5 Denbigh LL16 5TA. The company which was a manufacturer of wood products 
suffered a significant downturn in trade, which triggered it going into Liquidation. Since then the 
Liquidators have attempted to realise the assets. 

The company could not be saved and it was put into liquidation in 9th September 2021 and wound 
up on the same day. There were significant outstanding liabilities (circa £183k) and limited assets 
(£250) to make any payments against these debts. Because of this all unsecured creditors, including 
DCC have been advised no dividend payment would be made. 

The second case relates to a company Egohue Ltd, which owned two empty properties (12 Bodfor 
Street and 14/16 Bodfor Street in Rhyl). The properties have been unoccupied since 8th July 2018. 
Despite numerous attempts to collect the debt, including obtaining liability orders and issuing the 
case to the Enforcement Agents, no payments have been made since 4th July 2018. The case had 
been considered for insolvency action, however the company has been dissolved on 15th February 
2022 and it is understood the properties have been passed to the ‘Treasury Solicitor’ as ‘Bona 
Vacantia’. As the company is now dissolved there is no prospect of any payment being received. 

 

Table 1: Summary of write offs 

Company name Financial Year Amount   

Gorsefield Holding Ltd 2019/20 £8,796.43 

 2020/21 £23,540.00 

 2021/22 £10,383.20 

Sub Total  £42,719.83 

Egohue Ltd 2018/19 £4,013.01 

 2019/20 £8486.00 

 2020/21 £8630.00 

 2021/22 £7504.66 

Sub Total  £28,633.67 

Grand Total  £71,353.50 

 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

26 July 1 Items from Scrutiny Committees 
- Review of Cabinet Decision 
relating to the Proposed 
Scheme of Delegated Decision 
Making for Land Acquisition 
(Freehold and Leasehold) for 
Carbon Sequestration and 
Ecological Improvement 
Purposes 

To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Scrutiny Coordinator 

 2 Shared Prosperity Fund To consider the regional 
investment plan for formal 
sign off 

Yes Cllr Jason McLellan 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Grieve 

 3 Temporary Accommodation 
Support Project 

To seek Cabinet approval to 
tender for the project 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer Ann Lloyd 
Report Author Hayley Jones 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

 

20 Sept 1 Annual Treasury Management 
Report 2021-22 

To give a review of the 
Treasury Management 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer Steve Gadd 

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 9



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

activities over the previous 
financial year (2021-22) 

Report Author Rhys Ifor 
Jones 

 2 Draft Sustainable Transport 
Plan 

To seek Cabinet approval of 
the draft Sustainable 
Transport Plan for 
consultation 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Mike Jones 

 3 Temporary Accommodation 
Support Project 

To seek Cabinet approval to 
award the contract for the 
project 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer Ann Lloyd 
Report Author Hayley Jones 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

 

18 Oct 1 Central Rhyl Coastal Defence 
Scheme and Central Prestatyn 
Coastal Defence Scheme 

To seek endorsement to 
proceed with the schemes 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer Tony Ward 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

P
age 148



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

22 Nov 1 Council Performance Update – 
July to September 

To consider the Council’s 
performance in delivering 
against the council’s strategic 
plan and services 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer Nicola Kneale 
Report Author Iolo McGregor 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

 

13 Dec 1 Housing Rent Setting & 
Housing Revenue and Capital 
Budgets 2023/24 

To seek approval for the 
proposed annual rent 
increase for council housing 
and to approve the Housing 
Revenue Account Capital 
and Revenue Budgets for 
2023/24 and Housing Stock 
Business Plan 

Yes Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Geoff Davies 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

P
age 149



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Cabinet’s attention 

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

26 July 12 July 20 September 6 September 18 October 4 October 
 
Updated 16/06/2022 – KE 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

P
age 150


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 UK GOVERNMENT LEVELLING UP FUND BID APPROVAL - CLWYD WEST CONSTITUENCY
	LUF CLWYD WEST - APPENDIX 1
	7 UK GOVERNMENT LEVELLING UP FUND BID APPROVAL - CLWYD WEST CONSTITUENCY


	6 STRATEGIC EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IN DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY REPORT - APPENDIX A

	7 FUTURE OF THE NORTH WALES CONSTRUCTION PARTNERSHIP - MAIN CONTRACTOR FRAMEWORK
	FUTURE OF NWCF - Appendix 1 NWCP full Report v1
	Appendix 1 NWCP full Report v1.pdf
	Appendix 1 NWCP full Report v1
	Denbighshire Projects
	270522 Denbighshire Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 Coroner and Y Bont Supply Chain Mapping
	260522 oaktree supply chain mapping
	300522 Welsh Language Block Supply Chain Mapping


	220606 Welsh Language Block Supply Chain Mapping V2

	FUTURE OF NWCF - Appendix 2 NWCP WellbeingAssessment V1.1
	FUTURE OF NWCF - Appendix 3 Programme report
	270522 Anglesey Projects Chart and Table
	300522 Anglesey County Council Projects - dashboard
	270522 Bangor Uni - Medical Education Hub Anatomy & Clinical Skills Facility - Chart and Table Report
	300522 Bangor University Project - Med Hub Dashboard
	270522 Coleg Cambria Chart and Table
	300522 Coleg Cambria Project - Community Hub Dashboard
	300522 Conwy Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 Conwy County Council Projects dashboard
	270522 Flintshire Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 Flintshire County Council Projects - dasboard
	270522 Gwynedd Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 Gwynedd County Council Projects - dashboard
	270522 North Wales Police Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 North Wales Police Projects dashbaord
	270522 Wrexham Projects - Chart and Table
	300522 Wrexham County Council Projects - Dasboard


	8 FINANCE REPORT
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 1 Budget Book 22-23
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 2 Revenue Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 3 Service Variance Narrative
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 4 Capital Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 5 Major Projects
	FINANCE REPORT - Appendix 6 Business Rates Write Offs

	9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME



